
AGENDA –June 20, 2012 

Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Tompkins County 

 
Wednesday, June 20, 2012 
3:00 pm – 4:30 pm, CVB 
 
Agenda 
  May Minutes - 2 minutes 
 Chair's Report – David Sparrow - 5 minutes 
 Ithaca Commons Redesign Presentation – Mayor Svante Myrick - 20 minutes 
 IMPP Presentation – Diana Riesman - 10 minutes 
 2013 Tourism Budget Committee Recommendations – Discussion (action will be at 

the July STPB meeting) – Rick Adie - 40 minutes 
 May CVB Report – Fred Bonn – 10 minutes 
 
 
Attached (agenda packet): 

1. May 2012 draft STPB meeting minutes 
2. 2013 Tourism budget recommendations 
3. 2005-2011 Tourism Program historic budget summary 
4. 2013 Tourism Program Budget requests 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
MISSION: 
The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and 
strategic direction for tourism initiatives that promote 
economic development and enhance the quality of life in 
Tompkins County. 

  



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2012 

Page 1  

Date:  May 16, 2012   
Time:  3:00-5:00pm 
Location: Convention and Visitor’s Bureau 
 
Attendees: 

Name Representation 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 

Sue Stafford  TC3 

Susie Monagan  Arts-Culture 

Tim Joseph  At-Large 

VACANT  At-Large 

Brett Bossard  CAP, Non-Voting 

Fred Bonn  CVB, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Jean McPheeters  Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

VACANT  Transportation, Non-Voting 

Tom Knipe  Staff 
 

Also in attendance: Ronda Roaring, Samantha Smith, Kathy Wilsea (Tompkins County Planning Dept.)  
 
Agenda 
1. Approval of minutes for April, 2012 STPB meeting  
2. Chair's report 
3. Budget Committee report  
4. Caroline Community Project 
5. Strategic Tourism Plan Draft – Member Discussion 
6. April CVB Report 
 
Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 3:05 PM by the Chair, David Sparrow. 
 
Discussion 
1. Approval of minutes for May, 2012 STPB meeting – April minutes were corrected to reflect Sue 
Stafford was excused. With that change, April minutes were approved unanimously. 
 
2. Chair's report -- David Sparrow reported that STPB Bylaws updates passed at PDEQ, but were 
withdrawn prior to presentation going to the County Legislature. Legislator Dooley Kiefer wanted to provide 
edits. Two changes were of substance, and changes were provided to members. Article Five, Section 3, 
Voting was changed to “…but in no case shall a resolution be passed with fewer than six members voting 
in the affirmative.” Also, Article Two, Section 1, Powers and Duties was changed to “To develop a tourism 
policy for review and adoption by the Tompkins County Legislature. The policy shall be developed with 
input from members of the community who are interested in and informed about local tourism 
development, and shall address all issues raised by reports and information pertinent to all aspects of 
tourism development.” Changes moved by Paul Tatar, seconded by Jon Reis and passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
David’s report continued with the announcement that a Marketing and Advertising grant application for the 
Scottish Games was not reviewed in the spring grant round due to a blameless mix-up in the receipt of the 
application. Fred Bonn has arranged for the CVB to match $1,500 of marketing for the Scottish Games. 
 
Budget Committee Report – Rick Adie provided a chart of the budget forecast summary. Rick reviewed 
the methodology for projected room tax revenue growth and impact on Tourism Program reserves. There 
were no questions from members on methodology. Uncollected room taxes from 2011 were determined to 
be a non-factor in terms of re-forecasting 2012 revenues and setting the 2013 revenue figure. The 

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman At-Large 

Anthony Hopson  Ithaca College, Vice-Chair 

Beverly Baker  At-Large 

David Sparrow  At-Large, Chair 

Ethan Ash Exc Arts-Culture 

Gary Stewart  Cornell 

Jon Reis  Arts-Culture 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Paul Tatar  Recreation 

Rick Adie  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg Agriculture 

Scott Wiggins Exc Lodging 

Stuart Stein Exc At-Large 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2012 

Page 2  

renovation of the Holiday Inn, leading to its partial closure from November 2012 until Spring 2013 will be a 
neutral factor in room tax revenues next year because of growth of supply elsewhere in the market. 
 
Some funds will be put aside for issues identified in the Strategic Plan where the Tourism Program can 
have direct impact. The Budget Committee will meet 5/31 with grant committee chairs and program 
administrators, and further on 6/13.  
 
Comments: Fred liked the strategy of addressing issues of the Strategic Plan with a budget allocation. Tom 
Knipe asked members to send him any comments about the possible parameters for allocation of Strategic 
Tourism Plan Implementation funds that were shared with the May agenda packet. The Planning and 
Evaluation Committee will help work out the details of how these funds are to be applied for and allocated. 
Rick pointed out that Tompkins County is recovering from the recession more quickly than the rest of the 
country. Average room rates are increasing here, but are still down nationwide. Our occupancy rate also is 
higher.  
 
Caroline Community Project – Rita Rosenberg and Samantha Smith provided information on the Farm & 
Garden Extravaganza (GadZukes!) that will occur in July, based at the Brooktondale Community Center. 
This model is supported by CVB and Cornell Cooperative Extension. Visitors can visit participating farms 
and gardens by walking, biking, or by automobile. (The greatest planned trip circumference is 17 miles.) 
The organizers hope to attract people from outside Tompkins County. A grant from Cornell Cooperative 
Extension of Tompkins County will help cover costs, and organizers are requesting donations from 
participants.  
 
Strategic Tourism Plan Draft – Member Discussion – Tom Knipe shared information on performance 
indicators and possible actions. The Planning & Evaluation Committee met to work on critical actions, and 
applied filters such as whether the action can be implemented by the Tourism Program, and whether it is 
specific enough so that we could actually identify success/completion. This allowed them to do some 
grouping of actions. Today’s goal is to approve content, then the document will go through a public comment 
period. Tom suggested that the discussions focus on points of policy relevance, as opposed to language 
edits, which he encouraged members to continue to send him via email. Members wanted to know what 
would be STPB involvement in revitalizing downtown; how we can tell people what the Plan entails, but do it 
briefly (what is the “elevator speech?”); how to describe STPB support for the Finger Lakes Wine Center; 
provide descriptions of measurable goals; clarify whether we are promoting Tompkins County as destination 
for LGBT weddings; and does our recommendation for waterfront development get into what we can and 
can’t do there. 

 During discussion on support for downtown, Jean McPheeters moved to used phrase “support the 
Commons through financing, advocacy and collaboration. . .” Seconded by Ken Jupiter, passed by voice 
vote with one abstention (Hopson).  

 Discussion also focused on support for the Finger Lakes Wine Center, for example, and how specific our 
support should be for this one project. Should there be any attempt should to have topic descriptions be 
similar in length in the Plan, and should language be sufficiently general enough to be flexible? Martha 
Armstrong suggested language such as “Support FLWC to continue to grow Ithaca as the gateway to the 
Finger Lakes wine region.”  

 Tim Joseph said he also serves on the Finger Lakes Tourism Alliance board, where the idea of 
promotion of the region as an LGBT destination was brought for consideration, but voted down. There 
was agreement by STPB that Tompkins County can do this successfully with simultaneous development 
of our product as an LGBT destination and identification of friendly facilities. 

 Gary Ferguson raised the issues of support for waterfront enterprise. There are many aspects of 
business being allowed on the waterfront, but few that STPB can address directly. Maybe the addition of 
an advocacy phrase to the Plan embracing: support for the limited opportunities is a good idea. Tom said 
the anticipated Phase II of the Cayuga Lakes Blueway Trail would involve site development for paddlers. 
Fred wondered if we should mention Hydrilla in any way. Martha said it is not a critical action step, but 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2012 

Page 3  

we might need some reference in the strategy in order to get grant money. Jean pointed out some issues 
raise serendipity, opportunity and challenge: there are not a lot of commercially developable sites on the 
waterfront. 

 
Tom moved on to structural issues for the plan. We need to develop baseline figures related to the 
“measurable objectives” so that we can track our progress. This will be developed after the plan is adopted. 
Focus Areas fall into Established, Emerging, and Foundation (page 27). Anne voiced concern about the 
focus areas varying so much in length, and suggested having “Ithaca is Gorges” first. Right now they are in 
alphabetical order, not by any priority. Rick suggested matching the order of the Chmura report. Brett pointed 
out that document design will help. Gary Ferguson suggested members consider taking Anne’s point broader 
– people will make their own “Reader’s Digest” version around the issues that they care most about, and 
press and politicians will try to give snapshots. Do we want to point out key messages now or later? Beverly 
Baker reiterated tourism begins with beautification and signage (page 40), and we need a presence near 
State & Meadow. The committee did not discuss location of Visitor Services as part of this critical action.  

 Returning to the FLWC, there was discussion on wording. Rita moved to accept “support and develop 
FLWC as the gateway to the Finger Lakes wine region trails”, and accepted as a friendly amendment 
changing that to “. . . wine region”. The motion was seconded by Sue Stafford and passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 

Announcement – Because Sue Stafford needed to leave, she shared information about the Hospitality Star 
event which will take place 6/19 – 20. It is free of charge to people in the industry and job seekers, but all 
need to register. 

Strategic Tourism Plan Draft (continued) – Tom asked if there was support to put the draft out to the 
public prior to additional board review, and there were no objections. Design edits will begin shortly; Brett 
Bossard has agreed to help with this. The outreach strategy will mirror the January workshop, with contact of 
tourism partners, issue of a press release, and the plan being made available to view online.  
 
April CVB Report – Fred Bonn reported Fairfield Inn is under construction, and he is hearing chatter about 
Hotel Ithaca proceeding, too. The CVB is receiving many job applications for the Integrated Marketing 
Manager opening, and he hopes to have someone on board by 7/1. He is working with a translator to come 
up with “Ithaca is Gorges” in Chinese. He heard this morning that AARP placed Ithaca in their list of “Quirky 
Places to Retire”.  
 
Announcement – Brett will have “arts & prosperity” data 6/8 and will do a press release concerning that. 

With no further business, David Sparrow declared the meeting adjourned at 4:45pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Kathy Wilsea, Secretary 
Tompkins County Planning Dept. 
 
Next Meetings Scheduled 
Wednesday, June 20 – 3pm  
Wednesday, July 18 – 3pm 
 
 



2013 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget
TK - Modified 6/14/12

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2012-2013 2012-2013

Recommend
From 

Reserves
Modified 
Budget Request Recommend $ Change % Change 

Function
Arts and Cultural Organizational Development 
     Direct Funding 178,673 178,673 186,755 180,773 2,100 1.2%
     Program Management  (CAP) 22,100 22,100 20,000 20,000 -2,100 -9.5%
          Subtotal 200,773 200,773 206,755 200,773 0 0.0%

Beautification, Public Art & Signage
     Direct Funding 121,009 121,009 129,798 124,398 3,389 2.8%
     Program Management (Chamber/CCE) 8,000 8,000 8,200 8,200 200 2.5%
          Subtotal 129,009 129,009 137,998 132,598 3,589 2.8%

Tourism Capital Grants
     Direct Funding 175,788 175,788 181,062 181,062 5,274 3.0%
     Program Management  (TCAD) 19,532 19,532 20,118 20,118 586 3.0%
          Subtotal 195,320 195,320 201,180 201,180 5,860 3.0%

Community Arts Partnership-Ticket Center 21,755 21,755 22,400 21,755 0 0.0%
Community Arts Partnership-Operating Asst. 37,000 37,000 38,110 38,110 1,110 3.0%
Community Celebrations 26,600 26,600 40,000 31,600 5,000 18.8%
Tourism Project Grants 69,103 69,103 99,000 76,013 6,910 10.0%
Festivals 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 0.0%
WIB/TC3 Customer Service Program 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 0 0.0%
County Historian 5,000 5,000 6,000 5,500 500 10.0%
          Subtotal 214,458 214,458 260,510 227,978 13,520 6.3%

Grand Total-Product Development 739,560 739,560 806,443 762,529 22,969 3.1%
% of total 40.9% 40.8% 41.1% 40.9%

Tompkins County Tourism Program - 2013 Budget Recommendations Page 1 of 3



MARKETING 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2012-2013 2012-2013

Function Recommend
From 

Reserves
Modified 
Budget Request Recommend Change % Change 

   Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB)
CVB Tourism Marketing Operations
     Personnel (salaries and fringe) 436,001 436,001 485,203
     Supplies and Materials 65,995 65,995 69,075
     Downtown Visitor Center Rent 11,330 11,330 11,670

          Subtotal 513,326 513,326 565,948

Chamber Support
     Staff 39,563 39,563 36,785
     Facilities 87,199 87,199 88,843

          Subtotal 126,762 126,762 125,628

Program Costs:
     Marketing 277,250 277,250 268,250
     Public Relations 4,350 4,350 16,750
     Visitor Services 11,100 11,100 11,500
     Group Sales 38,750 38,750 44,250
          Subtotal 331,450 331,450 340,750

Gross CVB Budget 971,538 971,538 1,044,326
Less: Program Revenue/Applied Reserves 75,750 75,750 120,500

     Subtotal--CVB Allocation 895,788 895,788 923,826 913,776 17,988 2.0%

   Other Marketing Programs
Marketing and Advertising Grants 50,699 50,699 53,650 52,220 1,521 3.0%
Finger Lakes Tourism Alliance 11,500 11,500 12,000 12,000 500 4.3%
New Tourism Initiative Grants 66,445 66,445 96,500 73,090 6,645 10.0%
Discovery Trail 36,270 36,270 56,270 36,270 0 0.0%
Recognition Awards 0 3,000 3,000 5,000 2,000 -1,000 -33.3%
Market the Arts 10,000 10,000 10,300 10,300 300 3.0%
     Sub-total Other Marketing 174,914 177,914 233,720 185,879 7,965 4.5%
Grand Total--Tourism Marketing 1,070,702 1,073,702 1,157,546 1,099,655 25,953 2.4%

% of total 59.1% 59.2% 58.9% 59.1%

Tompkins County Tourism Program - 2013 Budget Recommendations Page 2 of 3



COMBINED PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT & 
MARKETING 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2012-2013 2012-2013

Recommend
From 

Reserves
Modified 
Budget Request Recommend Change % Change 

Strategic Tourism Plan Implementation 0 0 160,000 147,000 147,000

COUNTY
Countribution to County for programmatic support and tax 
administration 193,870 203,672 213,855 213,855 10,184 5.0%
STBP Staff/Tourism Coordination 74,386 74,386 77,834 77,834 3,448 4.6%
     Total 268,256 278,058 291,689 291,689 13,632 4.9%

Product Development and Marketing 1,810,262 1,813,262 1,963,989 1,862,185 48,923 2.7%

Total 2,078,518 2,091,320 2,255,678 2,153,874 62,554 3.0%

Projected Revenues 1,938,695 2,036,716 2,138,552 2,138,552 101,836 5.0%
Projected use of Reserves for Existing Programs 139,823 54,604 2,322 15,322
Total Tourism Budget Available to County & Existing Programs 2,078,518 2,091,320 2,140,874 2,153,874 62,554 3.0%
Strategic Tourism Plan Implementation 160,000 147,000 147,000
Grand Total Tourism Budget 2,078,518 2,091,320 2,300,874 2,300,874 209,554 10.0%

as of 4/27/12
Unallocated Reserve Balance 165,892
Projected Year-End Unallocated Reserve Balance 251,111 88,789 88,789
% of Budgeted Revenues in reserves at year end 4.2% 4.2%

60/40 CALCULATIONS
Total Budget Target (not including st. plan implementation) 2,140,874 2,153,874
Total Budget without COUNTY 1,849,185 1,862,185
OVER TARGET -114,804 0
60% Target for Marketing (hypothetical) 1,109,511 1,117,311
40% Target for PD (hypothetical) 739,674 744,874
Adjust from request - Marketing (hypothetical) -48,035 17,655
Adjust from request - Product (hypothetical) -66,769 -17,655
Adjust from Total Budget -114,804 0

Tompkins County Tourism Program - 2013 Budget Recommendations Page 3 of 3



PRODUCT
Arts & Cultural Organization Development 201,445 199,891 200,000 198,000 180,000 177,773 200,773 200,773
Beautification, Public Art & Signage 78,420 90,000 115,231 115,047 112,806 107,012 132,762 129,009
CAP- Operating  Ticket Center 41,000 20,500 20,500 22,900 22,900 29,755 21,755 21,755
CAP – Operating Assistance 28,000 28,000 28,000 30,900 32,400 30,780 37,000 37,000
Community Celebrations 25,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 28,000 26,600 26,600 26,600
Tourism Project Grants 68,788 20,000 64,000 80,000 66,363 69,817 62,017 69,103
Tourism Capital Grants 156,565 100,000 110,000 141,523 140,276 143,263 172,729 195,320
Strategic Planning 16,000 20,000 see below
Baseline Survey Project- Consultant 6,000
County Historian 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Festivals 30,000 20,000 25,000 25,000
Workforce Development/TC3 Customer Serv 45,000 30,000 30,000 30,000

SUB TOTAL 599,218 478,391 562,731 639,370 688,745 640,000 713,636 739,560

MARKETING
Marketing and Advertising Grants 40,000 25,000 46,800 36,054 37,000 52,078 50,699 50,699
Finger Lakes Tourism Alliance 9,500 11,500 12,400 14,000 11,500 11,500 11,500 11,500
New Tourism Initiative Grants 35,000 0 28,400 20,000 0 30,000 62,015 66,445
Discovery Trail 25,000 25,000 37,500 37,500 37,615 35,734 35,734 36,270
Market Tompkins County - CVB 755,600 656,087 721,296 820,000 672,690 663,944 871,550 884,458
Market Tompkins County- CVB Admin 114,608 87,696
Rent East Shore Drive Visitors Center 82,000 84,048
Recognition Awards 0 1,250 2,750 0 1,000 1,000 0 0
Rent Downtown Visitors Center 12,000 12,000 11,000 11,330
Strategic Planning 24,000 30,000 see below
Market the Arts 10,000 0 10,000 10,000
Baseline Survey Project- Consultant 4,000 0

SUB TOTAL 865,100 718,837 849,146 951,554 1,012,413 978,000 1,052,498 1,070,702

Product + Marketing 1,464,318 1,197,228 1,411,877 1,590,924 1,701,158 1,618,000 1,766,134 1,810,262

Staffing 100,000 43,392 74,386
Budget County's 10% share 120,000 132,887 146,175 177,214 155,216 170,000 185,966 193,870

TOTAL BUDGET :                                           
(Product + Marketing + County's 10%) 1,584,318 1,330,115 1,558,052 1,773,138 1,856,374 1,888,000 1,995,492 2,078,518

ACTUAL Revenue 1,345,564 1,524,234 1,738,252 1,794,887 1,671,082 1,783,299 1,916,329

Reserves calculated separately**************

2009 
Modified

2010  
Modified

2011 
Modified

2012 
Adopted

2007 
Modified

2008 
Adopted

2005-2012 Tourism Budget 2005 
Modified

2006 
Modified

Modified 6/14/12 - tknipe@tompkins-co.org



































2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 1 

 

COVER	  PAGE	  
2013	  Budget	  Request	  Form	  
Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program	  
	  
I.	   BASIC	  INFORMATION	  
	  
Program:	  	   Tourism	  Capital	  Grants	   	   	  

Applicant	  Organization:	  	   TCAD	   	   	   	  

Contact	  Person:	  	   Martha	  Armstrong	   	   _______	  

Phone:	  	  273-‐0005	   	  	  Email:	  	   marthaa@tcad.org	   	   	  

2013	  Request:	  	  $201,180	  	  	  Product	  Development	  or	  Marketing?	  Product	  Development	   	  

Year	  
Tourism	  Program	  
Allocation**	  

$	  Change	   %	  Change	  
%	  of	  Program	  

Budget*	  

2010	   	  133,263	   ($7,013)	  	   	  -‐	  5.0%	   	  100%	  
2011	   172,729	  	   39,466	   +	  29.6%	  	  	   	  100%	  
2012	   195,320	  	   22,591	  	   +	  13.1%	  	   	  100%	  

Request	  2013	   201,180	  	   5,860	  	   +	  3%	  	   	  100%	  
*	  Enter	  the	  %	  of	  the	  total	  program	  budget	  that	  would	  come	  from	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program.	  
**	  Enter	  modified	  budget	  amounts	  where	  applicable.	  
	  
II.	   PROGRAM	  DESCRIPTION	  
The	  TCG	  program	  funds	  up	  to	  1/3	  of	  new	  construction,	  expansion,	  and	  renovation	  projects,	  and	  
up	  to	  100%	  of	  related	  feasibility	  studies,	  for	  tourism	  capital	  projects	  valued	  at	  about	  $75,000	  or	  
higher.	  	  Eligible	  applicants	  are	  large,	  tourist/visitor	  generating,	  not-‐for-‐profit	  or	  public-‐purpose	  
projects.	  	  Projects	  include	  new	  facilities	  such	  as	  the	  Museum	  of	  the	  Earth,	  renovations	  such	  as	  the	  
State	  Theatre,	  and	  projects	  that	  improve	  exhibits	  and	  visitor	  amenities	  such	  as	  the	  Sciencenter’s	  
ocean	  touch	  tank.	  
	  
III.	   CHALLENGES	  &	  OPPORTUNITIES	  	  
The	  TCG	  program	  has	  seen	  increasing	  application	  activity	  over	  the	  past	  few	  years.	  Two	  key	  
challenges:	  (1)	  In	  order	  to	  accommodate	  the	  numerous	  quality	  requests,	  TCG	  has	  resorted	  to	  
providing	  multi-‐year	  grants	  as	  a	  norm.	  	  This	  situation,	  while	  allowing	  larger	  awards,	  has	  limited	  
available	  funds	  for	  new	  awards	  in	  subsequent	  years.	  (2)	  In	  the	  past	  two	  years	  all	  the	  funds	  were	  
awarded	  in	  the	  first	  round,	  so	  that	  also	  limits	  applications.	  	  The	  opportunities	  are	  (A)	  focus	  TCG	  
funds	  on	  projects	  with	  higher	  tourism	  value	  (for	  example	  to	  improve	  the	  review	  process,	  in	  2012	  
we	  piloted	  a	  scoring	  grid	  that	  we	  will	  tweak	  in	  2013).	  	  (B)	  Consider	  how	  to	  best	  balance	  support	  of	  
effective	  tourism	  institutions	  with	  support	  of	  emerging	  products.	  
	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 2 

 

IV.	   BUDGET	  NARRATIVE	  
Describe	  how	  you	  propose	  to	  use	  the	  requested	  funds.	  You	  may	  also	  use	  this	  section	  to	  expand	  
on	  your	  answers	  to	  questions	  II	  and	  III.	  	  The funds are used to support capital grant awards and 
related administration costs.	  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In recent years the TCG has seen a significant increase in interest in the program, and in worthy 
applicants with substantial projects that develop tourism attractions.  In 2012, TCG had a record 
high eight applications.  Applicants have gained a more sophisticated understanding of the role of 
tourism in their individual projects.  They have also gained a greater sense of how their individual 
projects create synergy with other attractions and with the tourism industry as a whole.  The TCG 
program aspires to provide significant investment in these tourism products both for their own 
development, and for the development of the County’s tourism sector. 
 
As applications have increased, TCG has resorted to providing multi-year grants as a norm.  This 
situation, while allowing larger awards, has limited available funds for new awards in subsequent 
years.  (See the tables below for the program history and a view of how current multi-year awards 
will affect future fund availability under the two budget scenarios.) 
 
Originally, the TCG program accepted applications at any time.  In 2010, 2011 and 2012 the 
program intended to run two application rounds annually – one due about February 1, and one due 
about July 1.   However, each year nearly all the funds were awarded in the first round – with 
remaining funds inadequate for a second round.  For 2013, TCG will work with Tom Knipe to 
consider permanently going to a single round, possibly timed later in the spring. 
 
BUDGET PROPOSAL 
 
Two budgets have been submitted in the worksheet.  The Request Budget builds on the 2012 
modified budget that included a $20,000 supplemental increase over the base budget.  The Request 
Budget supports a longer term increase in TCG funding.  The Optional Budget builds on the 2012 
base budget, assuming that the supplemental increase was a one-time event.   
 
Year to year the TCG has inconsistent application demand.  Recently, 2011 saw $260,000 
requested from 3 applicants and 2012 saw $128,000 requested from 8 applicants.  However, the 
long-term trend in demand for TCG is upward.  It is impossible to predict exactly what will happen 
in 2013.  Likely the requests will exceed funds available.  Weaker applications may be passed 
over, stronger proposals may be underfunded, and/or awarded funds over multiple years.  If there 
are remaining funds, they will be rolled forward for a future year when major capital projects 
emerge.  TCAD anticipates that several large requests will emerge in the next year or two.  
Demand will be driven by: 

 Returning awardees – to support projects explored in previously completed studies or to 
build on previous capital grants 

 Emerging tourism products 
 Projects identified and promoted in the County’s Tourism Strategy 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 3 

 

HISTORY OF AWARDS 
   Applicant Year Award Sub total 
1  State Theatre Phase 2 2003 up to 125,000  

2   
PRI- Museum of Earth- Building 

Expansion 2003 up to 125,000 
 

3  Sciencenter Golf 2003 25,000  
4   Hangar Theatre 2003 up to 9,000 184,000 
5 Wine Center Feasibility Ph1 2004 up to 5,000 5,000 
6   Wine Center Feasibility Ph 2 2005 up to 7,500  
7  Ithaca Farmers Market 2005 10,000  
8   CWT Phase 2 2005 5,000  
9  Sciencenter Ocean 2005 20,000 42,500 
10   History Center 2006 up to 10,000  
11  Sciencenter Outdoor 2006 60,000 70,000 
12   Wine Center 2007 160,000 160,000 
13  Cayuga Nature Center Feas 2008 13,500  

14   
CWTI -- Stewart Park Rehab 

Action Plan 2008 15,000 
 

15  Hangar Theatre 2008 84,000  
16   Kitchen Theatre Feas 1 2008 13,000 125,500 
17  Kitchen Theatre Feas 2 2009 21,000  
18   Cayuga Nature Center 2009 up to 100,000  
19  Ithaca Children's Garden 2009 14,800  
20   Hangar Theatre Capital 2009 up to 100,000  
21  Ithaca Motion Picture Project 2009 5,500  
22   Kitchen Theatre Capital 2009 up to 100,000 341,300 
23  Dorothy Cotton Institute 2010 7,500  
24   PRI/MOTE Climate Exhibit 2010 50,000  
25  Stewart Park Building Study 2010 15,000 72,500 
26   Cayuga Nature Center 2011 100,000  
27  Sciencenter Marcellus Exhibit 2011 50,000  
28   Ithaca Skate Park 2011 60,000 210,000 
29  Cayuga Waterfront Trail 2012 20,000  
30  Sciencenter Live Animal Gallery  2012 30,000  
31  State Theatre Bathrooms Study 2012 3,780  
32  Stewart Park Site Study 2012 10,000  
33  FLLT Emerald Necklace  2012* 20,000 83,780 
   Total $1,394,580  
  average award is $42,260     

* Pending final approval of legislature 
 
The table above shows how there was high demand in year one (2003).  Then, the next 3 years 
were relatively slow for the program.  Demand began to pick up in 2007, with a large peak in 
2009.  In 2010, 2011, 2012, awards were increasingly constrained by limited funds.  Demand is not 
expected to drop back to the low levels of the early years again. 
 
The tables on the next page show the multi-year demands and opportunities for new awards for the 
Requested Budget and the Optional Budget.  The Request Budget has 30% higher funds for new 
awards. 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 4 

 

Tourism Capital Grant Multi-Year Worksheets 
2013 Request Budget -- Impact of Multi-Year Awards 

  
 
 
 

2013 Optional Budget -- Impact of Multi-Year Awards 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 5 

 

V.	   PROGRAM	  GOALS	  
List	  and	  describe	  program	  goals	  for	  2013,	  using	  the	  sample	  format.	  For	  each	  goal	  listed,	  describe	  
how	  you	  will	  measure	  achievement	  of	  that	  goal	  (you	  may	  list	  more	  than	  one	  measure	  of	  
achievement	  for	  each	  goal).	  This	  will	  require	  you	  to	  consider	  appropriate	  numerical	  measures	  and	  
baselines.	  	  Also,	  which	  goals	  of	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Strategic	  Tourism	  Plan	  does	  this	  program	  
respond	  to,	  and	  how	  do	  your	  proposed	  program	  goals	  align	  with	  goals	  stated	  in	  the	  strategic	  
tourism	  plan?	  
	  
Goal 1: Fund the growth of existing and new tourism attractions through support of capital 
projects in order to increase the number of visitors, extend visits, or improve visitor experience. 
 

Measurement 1A: Track visitorship at venues funded with capital awards. 
 
Goal 2: Fund feasibility studies for tourism capital projects. 
 

Measurement 2A:  Track distribution of awards between feasibility studies and capital 
awards. 

 
Goal 3: Continue to weigh applicants’ merits to optimize impact and fairness of awards during this 
time of increasingly competitive applications. 
 

Measurement 3A:  Use a scoring grid to foster a rational decision process. 
 
Goal 4: Support the goals of the Strategic Tourism Plan.  Examples could include: 

 Tourism amenities on the commons 
 Land and water trail tourism facilities 
 Investments stemming from the Stewart Park Rehabilitation Initiative  

 
Measurement 4A:  Confirm that marketing of the program targets strategic interests – e.g. 
participation in the Tourism Program application workshops; inclusion on the program’s email 
list; administrators meeting with potential change agents to encourage strategic direction. 

 
Below are two examples of current program assessment tools. 
  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 6 

 

 
 
Example 1 
 
This chart presents a recent summary evaluation of visitorship to TCG awardees.  Due to the 
inconsistent nature of reporting among the awardees, this chart should not be used to extract 
absolute values.  It does represent a fair approximation of visitorship. 
 
There are three categories of venues: 
 
• Major attractions are The Farmers Market, the Sciencenter, and the waterfront 
• Mid-size attractions are the State, Hangar, Museum of the Earth, and Nature Center 
• Smaller, niche attractions are the Children’s Garden, Kitchen Theatre, and Wine Center 
 
 
Annual Tourist visits to Awardees* 

 
 
* Estimate by TCAD based on self-reported information from awardees 
 
This method of evaluating the program depends on submission of the annual visitor report from the 
awardees.  For awardees that sell tickets, it has been relatively easy to count visitors and perform a 
zip code analyses to determine the approximate origin of visitors.  (Because students have credit 
cards from home, they may be the largest mis-count).  Non-ticketed destinations present a much 
greater challenge and have submitted spotty count information.  TCG would like to work with 
Tom Knipe to develop methods for evaluating tourism use of non-ticketed tourism attractions.  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 7 

 

 
Example 2 
 
Another analysis shows the balance of awards to awardees and the balance of awards between 
Feasibility Studies and Capital Investments. 
 
Awards by Organization and Type 
Tourism Capital Grants 
Awardees 2003 - 2011 

# of 
Awards 

Total $ 
Award 

Total $ 
Value 

 
feasibility 

 
capital 

Dorothy Cotton Institute 1 7,500 7,500 7,500  
      
History Center 1 10,000 10,000 10,000  
      
Ithaca Children's Garden 1 14,800 500,000  14,800 
      
Ithaca Farmers Market 1 10,000 51,630  10,000 
      
Ithaca Motion Picture Project 1 5,500 5,500 5,500  
      
Ithaca Skate Park 1 60,000 435,340  60,000 
      
Cayuga Nature Center 3 213,500 821,252 13,500 200,000 
      
Cayuga Waterfront Trail 3 35,000 145,000 30,000 5,000 

(includes Stewart Park)      
Hangar Theatre 3 193,000 3,193,000 93,000 100,000 
      
Kitchen Theatre 3 134,000 1,236,800 34,000 100,000 
      
Museum of the Earth 2 175,000 7,150,000  175,000 
      
Sciencenter 4 155,000 660,000  155,000 
      
State Theatre 1 125,000 720,300  125,000 
      
Wine Center 3 172,500 519,720 12,500 160,000 
      

Total 28 1,310,800 15,456,042 206,000 1,104,800 
	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 8 

 

VI.	  	   ACHIEVEMENTS	  
Please	  describe	  your	  most	  significant	  program	  achievements	  during	  2011	  and	  the	  first	  quarter	  
(January	  through	  March)	  of	  2012.	  If	  possible,	  please	  use	  this	  as	  an	  opportunity	  to	  restate	  your	  
program	  goals	  for	  the	  2011	  and	  2012	  budget	  years	  and	  describe	  progress	  towards	  these	  goals.	  

 
1. Awards: The first round in 2011 had three successful applicants.  Awards totaled $210,000 with 
$65,000 being distributed in 2011.  TCG also reviewed the progress of four previously-awarded, 
multi-year grants in October to release their 2011 payments totaling $105,000.  In the first quarter 
of 2012 TCG completed the review of eight applications and recommended five awards totaling 
$83,780.  This was a tough round where the review panel decided against funding three applicants, 
reduced awards to most of the awardees, and also worked to manage the impact of multi-year 
payments on future years. 
 
2. Review process: Because of increasing competition for the grants, TCG created a scoring grid 
for the review panel.  This was used in 2012 and may still require a few tweaks. 

 
3. Increasing applications: The experience of increasing applications indicates that the grant 
program is better known throughout the County, and that investment in tourism venues is 
increasing.  This is a result of: 

 the total impact of the County’s tourism development programming, which is inspiring 
greater development of tourism product 

 the successes of the Tourism Capital Grants program, which is generating awareness 
among the greater community and eligible organizations 

 the ACOD Program, which has helped a number of the TCG applicants develop the 
capacity to undertake major capital projects 

	  

VII.	  	   IMPACT	  OF	  FUNDING	  
What	  would	  be	  the	  specific	  impact	  of	  receiving	  less	  funding	  than	  you	  are	  requesting?	  For	  
example,	  what	  are	  the	  things	  that	  you	  would	  like	  to	  be	  able	  to	  do	  that	  you	  would	  not	  be	  able	  to	  
do?	  What	  would	  be	  removed	  or	  reduced	  from	  your	  plans	  if	  you	  had	  to	  make	  do	  with	  less	  than	  
requested?	  
	  

As requested in the Request Budget, the Tourism Capital Grant program could use consistently 
higher funds to support the increasing number of worthy projects applying to the program.  With 
more limited funds – such as the Optional Budget scenario – TCG will see the competition 
increase, and worthy projects may go unfunded or underfunded. 
 
VIII.	  	   COLLABORATION	  
What	  steps	  have	  you	  taken	  and	  do	  you	  propose	  to	  take	  to	  further	  collaboration	  and	  information	  
and	  resource	  sharing	  between	  your	  program(s)	  and	  other	  room-‐tax	  funded	  program	  
 
Currently, the CVB formally participates in TCAD’s Economic Development Collaborative.  
Informally, program administrators check in with each other occasionally on common issues.  
TCG anticipates continuing to work closely with Tom Knipe and other administrators on strategic 
initiatives, and improving evaluation methods.  TCG would like to formally meet more regularly 
with other administrators to discuss program operations and collaborations on shared goals.  This 
is especially true for the ACOD program, which is closely aligned in the effort to develop the 
effectiveness of Tompkins County’s larger tourism institutions.  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Capital Grants Program  
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am                                                                                                   Page 9 

 

	  

Tourism Capital Grants
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

!"#"$%"&
&'()*+,-*.&
/011&23*4-5& /01/&23*4-5

&!-63-75&
/018&23*4-5&

9:;)<=>&
/018&?3*4-5 $)5-7

!"#$%&'()*%+'$,-)*",#%).%*,/,01,# !"!#$ $172,729 $175,320 $201,180 $180,580
233%)*%3,4,$,%4"0,#5*)6#%'#%0,,3,3 *)44%.)*6'*3%.*)&%7*,/")1#%8,'* %&'()*) 2,928.25 0 0
9,7'*'$,%:8%7*)(,+$%".%&)*,%$;'0%)0,%7*)(,+$ #1774,&,0$'4%'44)+'<)0 20,000 0 0
=.%'774"+':4,>%"0+413,%/'41,%).%"0?@"03%#177)*$%'#%
A)$;,*AB

+,-!.!/0 %11)('23 %456(1'6 %1*4(46* %46*(&6*

@9@AB&!"#"$%"C %11)('23 $198,248 D/01E1F0 D1F0EGF0
!.!/07!"!#$ %11)('23 $198,248 %1*4(46* %46*(&6*
!"!#7+89:; 4**<*= 4**<*= 4**<*= 4**<*=

"HI"$C"C&&&
!"#$%&'()*%+'$,-)*",#%).%,C7,0#,# >:9?@A %14&(641 %463()6* %464(*31 %431(&11
233%)*%3,4,$,%4"0,#5*)6#%'#%0,,3,3 #;:AB??;C7D9E;A
9,7'*'$,%:8%7*)(,+$%".%&)*,%$;'0%)0,%7*)(,+$ #;:AB??;C7F:G?E;

H9@;:G9CA
+;:IGJ;A
.JJKL9?JM79?N7,OCGO;A
!:9I;C
/NPG?GA@:9OB?$$ %44(31' %44('36 %1*(446 %46(*&6
D$;,*%E0'&,F

+,-!.!/0 %11)('23 %456(1'6 %1*4(46* %46*(&6*

@9@AB&"HI"$C"C D//JEK8L D1MFE/KF D/01E1F0 D1F0EGF0
!.!/07!"!#$
!"!#7A89:; *<*= *<*= *<*= *<*=

!"#"$%"C&B"CC&"HI"$C"C %* %*

NOTES
$!"!#Q!BPLRG?A7"BK?@M7!BK:GAP7#:BE:9P

$$71*447GA79J@K9C71*4479NPG?7;SL;?A;AT71*417GA7;AOP9@;N79NPG?7;SL;?A;A

$$$!8;7U;VK;A@7GA7972=7G?J:;9A;7W:BP7@8;7PBNGX;N71*417YKNE;@T7@8;7.LOB?9C7GA797
2=7G?J:;9A;7W:BP7@8;71*417Y9A;7YKNE;@<



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER	  PAGE	  
2013	  Budget	  Request	  Form	  
Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program	  
	  
I.	   BASIC	  INFORMATION	  
	  
Program:	  	   Arts	  &	  Culture	  Organizational	  Development	  	  Grants	  	  

Applicant	  Organization:	  	   Community	  Arts	  Partnership	   	   	  

Contact	  Person:	  	   Brett	  Bossard	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  _______	  

Phone:	  	  607-‐273-‐5072	  	  	  	   	  	  Email:	  director@artspartner.org	  	   	  

2013	  Request:	  	  $	  206,755	   	  	  	  Product	  Development	  or	  Marketing?	  	  	   Product	  development	  	  

Year	  
Tourism	  Program	  
Allocation**	  

$	  Change	   %	  Change	  
%	  of	  Program	  

Budget*	  

2010	   200,733	   -‐	   -‐	   100%	  
2011	   200,733	   0	   0%	   100%	  
2012	   200,733	   0	   0%	   100%	  

Request	  2013	   206,755	   6,755	   3%	   100%	  
*	  Enter	  the	  %	  of	  the	  total	  program	  budget	  that	  would	  come	  from	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program.	  
**	  Enter	  modified	  budget	  amounts	  where	  applicable.	  
	  
II.	   PROGRAM	  DESCRIPTION	  
Describe	  the	  program	  in	  two	  or	  three	  sentences.	  	  
The	  Arts	  &	  Culture	  Organizational	  Development	  program	  provides	  necessary	  financial	  support	  to	  
our	  major	  arts	  and	  cultural	  assets	  with	  an	  approach	  designed	  to	  both	  identify	  and	  alleviate	  
prevalent	  institutionalized	  financial,	  management	  and	  operational	  challenges	  and	  encourage	  
long-‐term	  capacity	  building.	  	  Current	  recipients	  of	  support	  are	  the	  Cayuga	  Chamber	  Orchestra,	  
Cayuga	  Nature	  Center,	  Hangar	  Theatre,	  History	  Center,	  Kitchen	  Theatre,	  Museum	  of	  the	  
Earth/PRI,	  ScienCenter,	  and	  State	  Theatre.	  
	  
III.	   CHALLENGES	  &	  OPPORTUNITIES	  	  
Very	  briefly	  state	  overarching	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  related	  to	  your	  program	  (current	  or	  
anticipated	  in	  2013)	  and	  describe	  you	  how	  propose	  to	  address	  them.	  
The	  addition	  of	  dedicated	  staff	  at	  County	  Planning	  has	  created	  the	  opportunity	  for	  this	  program	  
to	  provide	  additional	  financial	  support	  to	  grantees.	  Senior	  Planner,	  Tom	  Knipe,	  and	  CAP	  Executive	  
Director,	  Brett	  Bossard	  have	  begun	  discussions	  to	  reduce	  the	  administrative	  costs	  of	  the	  ACOD	  
program	  and	  allow	  for	  greater	  amounts	  of	  support	  to	  grantees.	  The	  plans	  for	  streamlining	  the	  
contract	  and	  voucher	  process	  are	  in	  their	  preliminary	  phases,	  so	  submitted	  budget	  numbers	  
indicate	  flat	  funding	  for	  administration.	  These	  numbers	  will	  likely	  change	  as	  plans	  progress.	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.	   BUDGET	  NARRATIVE	  
Describe	  how	  you	  propose	  to	  use	  the	  requested	  funds.	  You	  may	  also	  use	  this	  section	  to	  expand	  
on	  your	  answers	  to	  questions	  II	  and	  III.	  
The	  funds	  as	  requested	  are	  allocated	  for	  	  

1) multi-‐year	  grant	  support	  to	  eight	  established	  institutions	  of	  cultural	  tourism	  in	  Tompkins	  
County,	  	  	  

2) administration	  of	  the	  grant	  program,	  and	  	  
3) professional	  services	  to	  conduct	  on-‐site	  fiscal	  practice	  review	  at	  recipient	  organizations.	  

 
V.	   PROGRAM	  GOALS	  
List	  and	  describe	  program	  goals	  for	  2013,	  using	  the	  sample	  format.	  For	  each	  goal	  listed,	  
describe	  how	  you	  will	  measure	  achievement	  of	  that	  goal	  (you	  may	  list	  more	  than	  one	  measure	  
of	  achievement	  for	  each	  goal).	  This	  will	  require	  you	  to	  consider	  appropriate	  numerical	  
measures	  and	  baselines.	  	  
	  
Also,	  which	  goals	  of	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Strategic	  Tourism	  Plan	  does	  this	  program	  respond	  to,	  
and	  how	  do	  your	  proposed	  program	  goals	  align	  with	  goals	  stated	  in	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  plan?	  
	  

Goal	  1:	  Streamline	  administration	  of	  program	  to	  allow	  for	  greater	  funding	  of	  program	  
support	  and	  increased	  quality	  of	  on-‐site	  support	  	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1A:	  Reduction	  of	  administrative	  expenses	  by	  a	  significant	  
amount	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1B:	  Increase	  frequency	  of	  “index	  of	  organizational	  stability”	  
visits	  to	  bi-‐annual	  
	  
As	  stated	  above,	  the	  plans	  to	  streamline	  the	  program	  are	  in	  their	  infancy,	  so	  the	  
mechanics	  of	  these	  changes	  will	  require	  further	  discussion,	  but	  they	  should	  not	  have	  an	  
affect	  on	  overall	  budget	  request	  for	  the	  program.	  
	  

The	  grants	  provided	  through	  this	  program	  strengthen	  and	  enhance	  the	  standards	  of	  
professionalism	  at	  our	  flagship	  arts	  and	  culture	  organizations	  and	  align	  with	  the	  strategic	  
tourism	  goal	  to	  develop	  Ithaca	  and	  Tompkins	  County	  as	  a	  central	  arts,	  cultural	  and	  heritage	  
tourism	  destination	  in	  the	  Finger	  Lakes.	  	  
	  
VI.	  	   ACHIEVEMENTS	  
Please	  describe	  your	  most	  significant	  program	  achievements	  during	  2011	  and	  the	  first	  quarter	  
(January	  through	  March)	  of	  2012.	  If	  possible,	  please	  use	  this	  as	  an	  opportunity	  to	  restate	  your	  
program	  goals	  for	  the	  2011	  and	  2012	  budget	  years	  and	  describe	  progress	  towards	  these	  goals.	  
ACOD	  will	  be	  completing	  the	  first	  multi-‐year	  grant	  rounds	  this	  year.	  This	  change	  to	  the	  program	  
has	  succeeded	  in	  encouraging	  long-‐term	  planning	  and	  providing	  economic	  stability	  at	  recipient	  
organizations.	  The	  review	  process	  of	  the	  grants	  has	  also	  developed	  and	  matured	  during	  the	  multi-‐
year	  grant	  round	  to	  include	  annual	  reports	  and	  specific	  rubrics	  for	  the	  grant	  review	  panel.	  	  	  
	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

VII.	  	   IMPACT	  OF	  FUNDING	  
What	  would	  be	  the	  specific	  impact	  of	  receiving	  less	  funding	  than	  you	  are	  requesting?	  For	  
example,	  what	  are	  the	  things	  that	  you	  would	  like	  to	  be	  able	  to	  do	  that	  you	  would	  not	  be	  able	  to	  
do?	  What	  would	  be	  removed	  or	  reduced	  from	  your	  plans	  if	  you	  had	  to	  make	  do	  with	  less	  than	  
requested?	  
The	  grants	  awarded	  would	  be	  reduced	  .	  
	  
VIII.	  	   COLLABORATION	  
What	  steps	  have	  you	  taken	  and	  do	  you	  propose	  to	  take	  to	  further	  collaboration	  and	  
information	  and	  resource	  sharing	  between	  your	  program(s)	  and	  other	  room-‐tax	  funded	  
programs?	  
The	  program	  currently	  requires	  performing	  arts	  organizations	  to	  utilize	  the	  shared	  box	  office	  
services	  of	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca.	  Perhaps	  there	  could	  be	  a	  more	  significant	  integration	  of	  grantees	  
in	  the	  marketing	  plans	  of	  the	  CVB.	  This	  would	  require	  additional	  staff	  effort	  and	  coordination	  
with	  marketing	  departments	  of	  grant	  recipients.	  



2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1

Arts & Culture Organizational Development Grants
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE	  
	  (Modified)	  
2011	  Budget	   2012	  Budget 2013	  Budget Notes

List	  major	  categories	  of	  revenues TCTP* 200773 200733 206755
Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project

If	  applicable,	  include	  value	  of	  in-‐kind	  support	  as	  
"other".

SUBTOTAL $200,773 $200,733 $206,755

TOTAL	  REVENUES $200,773 $200,733 $206,755
TOTAL	  TCTP* $200,733 $200,733 $206,755
TCTP	  Share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

EXPENSES	  	  	  
List	  major	  categories	  of	  expenses Grants $167,898 $170,756 $183,000

Professional	  Fees $2,910 $4,000 $3,000
Administration $19,650 $20,000 $20,000
Marketing	  &	  Advertising

SUBTOTAL $190,458 $194,756 $206,000

TOTAL	  EXPENSES $190,458 $194,756 $206,000
TOTAL	  TCTP* $200,733 $200,733 $206,755
TCTP	  share 105.4% 103.1% 100.4%

REVENUES	  LESS	  EXPENSES $10,315 $5,977 $755

*TCTP-‐Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER	  PAGE	  
2013	  Budget	  Request	  Form	  
Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program	  
	  
I.	   BASIC	  INFORMATION	  
	  
Program:	  	   CAP	  –	  Operating	  Expenses	   	   	   	  

Applicant	  Organization:	  	   Community	  Arts	  Partnership	   	   	  

Contact	  Person:	  	   Brett	  Bossard	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  _______	  

Phone:	  	  607-‐273-‐5072	  	  	  	   	  	  Email:	  director@artspartner.org	  	   	  

2013	  Request:	  	  $	  38,110	   	  	  	  Product	  Development	  or	  Marketing?	  	  	   Product	  development	  	  

Year	  
Tourism	  Program	  
Allocation**	  

$	  Change	   %	  Change	  
%	  of	  Program	  

Budget*	  

2010	   30,780	  	   -‐	   -‐	   10.3%	  
2011	   	  37,000	   6,220	   20%	   	  13.4%	  
2012	   37,000	  	   0	   0%	   13.4%	  

Request	  2013	   38,110	  	   1,110	   3%	   13.6%	  
*	  Enter	  the	  %	  of	  the	  total	  program	  budget	  that	  would	  come	  from	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program.	  
**	  Enter	  modified	  budget	  amounts	  where	  applicable.	  
	  
II.	   PROGRAM	  DESCRIPTION	  
Describe	  the	  program	  in	  two	  or	  three	  sentences.	  	  
The	  Community	  Arts	  Partnership	  (CAP)	  serves	  as	  the	  arts	  council	  of	  Tompkins	  County,	  providing	  
advocacy,	  support	  services,	  and	  resources	  for	  the	  county’s	  artists,	  arts	  organizations,	  and	  their	  
audiences.	  	  Support	  services	  include	  a	  numer	  of	  grants	  programs,	  professional	  development	  
workshops,	  an	  on-‐line	  Artist	  Registry	  and	  resource	  guides,	  monthly	  e-‐Newsletters,	  	  and	  ad	  hoc	  	  
artist/board	  development/marketing	  assistance	  consultations.	  Public	  Programs	  include	  the	  
Greater	  Ithaca	  Art	  Trail,	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca,	  Artist	  Markets,	  CAP	  ArtSpace	  (gallery),	  the	  Finger	  
Lakes	  Literary	  Festival,	  IthacaEvents.com,	  and	  Artists’	  Talks	  and	  Lecture	  Series.	  
	  
III.	   CHALLENGES	  &	  OPPORTUNITIES	  	  
Very	  briefly	  state	  overarching	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  related	  to	  your	  program	  (current	  or	  
anticipated	  in	  2013)	  and	  describe	  you	  how	  propose	  to	  address	  them.	  
Adjusting	  to	  ongoing	  changes	  with	  the	  New	  York	  State	  Council	  on	  the	  Arts	  continues	  to	  be	  a	  
challenge	  due	  to	  funding	  issues	  in	  Albany.	  	  The	  uncertainty	  in	  state	  funding	  has	  the	  largest	  impact	  
on	  our	  grant	  programs.	  At	  our	  most	  recent	  board	  retreat,	  the	  development	  committee	  was	  
charged	  with	  investigating	  ways	  to	  supplement	  NYSCA	  funding	  and	  stabilize	  grant	  programs.	  
Long-‐term	  solutions	  such	  as	  building	  an	  endowment	  have	  been	  discussed.	  	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.	   BUDGET	  NARRATIVE	  
Describe	  how	  you	  propose	  to	  use	  the	  requested	  funds.	  You	  may	  also	  use	  this	  section	  to	  expand	  
on	  your	  answers	  to	  questions	  II	  and	  III.	  
The	  funds	  requested	  are	  general	  operating	  support	  in	  the	  truest	  sense,	  contributing—in	  part—to	  
salaries,	  facility	  rental,	  and	  utilities.	  As	  a	  service	  organization,	  the	  human	  resources	  of	  CAP	  are	  its	  
most	  important	  asset.	  Excluding	  Ticket	  Center	  staff,	  CAP	  operates	  with	  just	  2.5	  FTE	  employees:	  an	  
executive	  director,	  a	  program	  director,	  and	  a	  part-‐time	  bookkeeper.	  This	  small	  staff	  coordinates,	  
plans,	  and	  executes	  all	  of	  the	  services	  and	  programs	  that	  provide	  the	  crucial	  “connective	  tissue”	  
for	  Tompkins	  County’s	  arts	  sector.	  	  	  
 
V.	   PROGRAM	  GOALS	  
List	  and	  describe	  program	  goals	  for	  2013,	  using	  the	  sample	  format.	  For	  each	  goal	  listed,	  
describe	  how	  you	  will	  measure	  achievement	  of	  that	  goal	  (you	  may	  list	  more	  than	  one	  measure	  
of	  achievement	  for	  each	  goal).	  This	  will	  require	  you	  to	  consider	  appropriate	  numerical	  
measures	  and	  baselines.	  	  
	  
Also,	  which	  goals	  of	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Strategic	  Tourism	  Plan	  does	  this	  program	  respond	  to,	  
and	  how	  do	  your	  proposed	  program	  goals	  align	  with	  goals	  stated	  in	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  plan?	  
	  

Goal	  1:	  Improve	  sales	  and	  attendance	  at	  Art	  Trail	  studios,	  Artist	  Markets,	  and	  performing	  
arts	  events	  sold	  through	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1A:	  Increase	  total	  Art	  Trail	  visitation	  by	  15%,	  from	  5,200	  to	  
6,000	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1B:	  Increase	  total	  sales	  at	  summer	  Artist	  Market	  by	  10%,	  from	  
$55,000	  to	  $60,500	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1C:	  Increase	  total	  tickets	  sold	  at	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca	  by	  15%,	  
from	  75,000	  to	  86,250	  
	  
CAP	  is	  at	  its	  strongest	  when	  aggregating	  the	  many	  pools	  of	  talent	  in	  Tompkins	  County	  and	  
promoting	  them	  to	  a	  mass	  audience.	  Our	  Artist	  Markets,	  the	  Ticket	  Center,	  and	  the	  
Greater	  Ithaca	  Art	  Trail	  all	  provide	  audiences	  to	  individual	  artists	  and	  organizations	  that	  
they	  would	  be	  unable	  to	  reach	  on	  their	  own.	  Targeted	  marketing	  efforts	  for	  these	  three	  
services	  will	  continue	  in	  2013,	  as	  will	  the	  new	  First	  Saturday	  events	  on	  the	  Art	  Trail	  and	  
expanded	  hours	  for	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca.	  

	  
Goal	  2:	  Improve	  performance	  and	  visibility	  of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  Arts	  Sector	  through	  
online	  promotion.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  2A:	  Increase	  total	  annual	  unique	  visitors	  to	  ArtTrail.com,	  
ArtsPartner.org,	  and	  IthacaEvents.com	  from	  100,000	  to	  120,000	  
	  
The	  three	  websites	  administered	  by	  CAP	  each	  have	  a	  distinct	  role	  to	  play	  in	  the	  promotion	  
of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  arts	  community.	  For	  performing	  arts,	  IthacaEvents.com	  offers	  a	  
“one-‐stop	  shop”	  with	  which	  to	  share	  upcoming	  events	  and	  festivals	  to	  an	  ever-‐growing	  
audience	  of	  both	  visitors	  and	  residents	  (~60,000	  unique	  visitors	  in	  2011).	  For	  indivual	  
artists,	  the	  Artist	  Registry,	  news	  and	  resources	  on	  ArtsPartner.org	  provide	  visibility	  and	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

support	  for	  reaching	  potential	  patrons.	  The	  visual	  artists	  on	  ArtTrail.com	  have	  the	  unique	  
opportunity	  to	  promote	  the	  experience	  of	  visiting	  their	  studios	  to	  an	  international	  
audience.	  The	  Greater	  Ithaca	  Art	  Trail,	  in	  particular,	  has	  attracted	  a	  great	  deal	  of	  attention	  
on	  a	  regional	  and	  national	  scale,	  with	  coverage	  in	  The	  Crafts	  Report,	  Life	  in	  the	  Finger	  
Lakes,	  and	  several	  other	  publications	  
	  
Goal	  3:	  Improve	  professional	  skills	  of	  area	  artists	  and	  arts	  organizations.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  3A:	  Increase	  total	  attendance	  at	  workshops	  and	  seminars	  by	  
15%	  
	  
Since	  2010,	  CAP	  has	  been	  offering	  professional	  development	  workshops	  on	  topics	  such	  as	  
financial	  management,	  using	  social	  media,	  developing	  marketing	  strategies,	  and	  
protection	  of	  intellectual	  property.	  This	  programming	  has	  provided	  necessary	  tools	  to	  our	  
artists	  and	  small	  arts	  organizations	  to	  improve	  their	  technical	  and	  professional	  skills	  and	  
make	  their	  practices	  more	  economically	  sustainable.	  News	  and	  data	  from	  national	  arts	  
organizations,	  as	  well	  as	  feedback	  from	  attendees	  and	  our	  database	  of	  arts	  contacts	  has	  
guided	  the	  selection	  of	  topics	  for	  these	  sessions.	  In	  2013,	  the	  program	  will	  expand	  to	  
feature	  a	  workshop	  each	  month.	  
.	  	  
	  

All	  of	  these	  goals	  serve	  to	  enhance	  the	  brand	  of	  Tompkins	  County	  as	  the	  premier	  arts	  
community	  in	  the	  region	  and	  align	  with	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  goal	  to	  develop	  Ithaca	  and	  
Tompkins	  County	  as	  a	  central	  arts,	  cultural	  and	  heritage	  tourism	  destination	  in	  the	  Finger	  
Lakes.	  	  
	  
VI.	  	   ACHIEVEMENTS	  
Please	  describe	  your	  most	  significant	  program	  achievements	  during	  2011	  and	  the	  first	  quarter	  
(January	  through	  March)	  of	  2012.	  If	  possible,	  please	  use	  this	  as	  an	  opportunity	  to	  restate	  your	  
program	  goals	  for	  the	  2011	  and	  2012	  budget	  years	  and	  describe	  progress	  towards	  these	  goals.	  
CAP	  has	  experienced	  a	  number	  of	  successes	  over	  the	  past	  year:	  

• While	  the	  total	  visits	  at	  Art	  Trail	  studios	  during	  2011	  open	  studio	  weekends	  dropped	  
slightly	  from	  2010,	  total	  sales	  were	  steady,	  and	  a	  new	  feature	  has	  been	  introduced	  in	  
2012	  –	  First	  Saturdays.	  On	  the	  First	  Saturday	  of	  each	  month,	  selected	  Art	  Trail	  member	  
studios	  open	  to	  the	  public,	  with	  promotions	  online	  and	  on	  collateral	  distributed	  
throughout	  the	  preceding	  First	  Friday	  Gallery	  Night	  in	  Downtown	  Ithaca.	  While	  only	  5	  
months	  old,	  the	  First	  Saturday	  program	  has	  already	  generated	  a	  great	  deal	  of	  attention	  
and—more	  importantly—sales	  for	  participating	  artists. 

• The	  summer	  and	  holiday	  Artist	  Markets	  both	  saw	  improved	  visitation	  and	  sales	  numbers	  
in	  2011.	  These	  two	  opportunities	  for	  artists	  and	  arts	  organizations	  to	  showcase	  and	  sell	  
their	  wares	  have	  grown	  in	  the	  last	  several	  years	  to	  become	  regional	  attractions.	  In	  
particular,	  the	  summer	  market,	  which	  occurs	  at	  the	  Ithaca	  Farmers	  Market,	  attracted	  
more	  than	  2,500	  visitors	  on	  a	  single	  Friday	  afternoon	  in	  July.	  	  Shifting	  from	  a	  Sunday	  to	  a	  
Friday	  event	  in	  2009	  has	  proven	  to	  be	  a	  wise	  choice	  for	  this	  annual	  tradition.	   

• In	  a	  few	  weeks,	  CAP	  will	  be	  able	  to	  announce	  the	  success	  of	  our	  participation	  in	  the	  Arts	  &	  
Economic	  Prosperity	  IV	  study	  conducted	  by	  Americans	  for	  the	  Arts.	  Throughout	  2011,	  we	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

collaborated	  with	  area	  festivals	  and	  organizations	  to	  conduct	  spending	  surveys	  with	  arts	  
attendees	  in	  Tompkins	  County.	  Coupled	  with	  budget	  data	  collected	  from	  arts	  and	  culture	  
organizations	  in	  the	  community,	  these	  surveys	  were	  submitted	  and	  have	  since	  been	  
analyzed	  by	  Americans	  for	  the	  Arts’	  team	  of	  economists.	  The	  resulting	  custom	  report	  will	  
provide	  hard	  data	  showing	  the	  significant	  impact	  of	  our	  non-‐profit	  arts	  and	  culture	  sector	  
on	  the	  local	  economy.	  A	  media	  roll-‐out	  is	  planned	  for	  summer	  2012	  to	  help	  spread	  the	  
word	  that	  the	  Arts	  Mean	  Business	  in	  Tompkins	  County. 

• Spring	  Writes:	  the	  Finger	  Lakes	  Literary	  Festival	  continued	  to	  grow	  in	  its	  recently	  
completed	  third	  annual	  run.	  Occuring	  over	  three	  days	  in	  May,	  this	  year’s	  festival	  included	  
27	  diverse	  events,	  from	  workshops	  and	  panels	  to	  readings,	  performances,	  and	  exhibitions.	  
Total	  attendance	  across	  all	  events	  is	  estimated	  at	  nearly	  1,800,	  up	  from	  approximately	  
1,500	  in	  2011.	  Out-‐of-‐county	  visitation	  estimates	  for	  the	  festival	  are	  still	  being	  tabulated. 

• The	  expansion	  of	  services	  at	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca	  continues	  to	  take	  shape.	  Additional	  
details	  will	  be	  included	  in	  the	  budget	  request	  for	  TCI	  operational	  support. 

 
	  
VII.	  	   IMPACT	  OF	  FUNDING	  
What	  would	  be	  the	  specific	  impact	  of	  receiving	  less	  funding	  than	  you	  are	  requesting?	  For	  
example,	  what	  are	  the	  things	  that	  you	  would	  like	  to	  be	  able	  to	  do	  that	  you	  would	  not	  be	  able	  to	  
do?	  What	  would	  be	  removed	  or	  reduced	  from	  your	  plans	  if	  you	  had	  to	  make	  do	  with	  less	  than	  
requested?	  
Since	  this	  funding	  is	  largely	  for	  staff	  support,	  a	  reduction	  from	  the	  requested	  amount	  would	  most	  
likely	  result	  in	  a	  reduction	  of	  programming.	  More	  staff	  time	  would	  need	  to	  be	  spent	  on	  seeking	  
other	  sources	  of	  funding,	  thereby	  reducing	  overal	  time	  spent	  on	  program	  delivery.	  Possible	  
reductions	  could	  include	  less	  promotion	  and	  PR	  work	  on	  public	  programs,	  reduced	  office	  hours,	  
fewer	  artist	  talk	  events,	  or	  fewer	  workshop	  sessions.	  
	  
VIII.	  	   COLLABORATION	  
What	  steps	  have	  you	  taken	  and	  do	  you	  propose	  to	  take	  to	  further	  collaboration	  and	  
information	  and	  resource	  sharing	  between	  your	  program(s)	  and	  other	  room-‐tax	  funded	  
programs?	  
In	  our	  role	  as	  the	  Arts	  Council	  for	  Tompkins	  County,	  nearly	  all	  of	  CAP’s	  work	  involves	  
collaboration	  with	  the	  artists,	  performers,	  and	  presenters	  in	  the	  community.	  Some	  examples	  
include	  the	  operation	  of	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca,	  which	  provides	  phone,	  walk-‐up,	  and	  internet	  ticket	  
sales	  services	  to	  the	  grantees	  of	  the	  ACOD	  program;	  the	  summer	  Artist	  Market,	  which	  features	  
showcase	  booths	  for	  room-‐tax	  funded	  programs	  such	  as	  the	  History	  Center,	  the	  Museum	  of	  the	  
Earth,	  and	  many	  theatres	  and	  performing	  arts	  groups;	  IthacaEvents.com,	  which	  promotes	  the	  
events	  of	  all	  arts	  and	  culture	  groups;	  and,	  of	  course,	  our	  co-‐location	  with	  the	  Downtown	  Visitor	  
Center	  in	  Center	  Ithaca.	  	  
	  



2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1

Community Arts Partnership - Operational Support
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE	  
	  (Modified)	  
2011	  Budget	   2012	  Budget 2013	  Budget Notes

List	  major	  categories	  of	  revenues TCTP* 37000 37000 38110
Add	  or	  delete	  lines/rows	  as	  needed New	  York	  State	  Council	  on	  the	  Arts $103,746 103503 106716

Foundation	  Support	  &	  Other	  Grants $22,000 22000 22300
Business	  Contributions $30,000 30000 30000
Private	  Contributions $7,900 8200 8200
Art	  Trail	  Fees $27,000 28000 28000
Artist	  Market	  Fees $13,000 13000 13500
Contracted	  Services $29,500 29500 27500

Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project Misc	  Income $5,450 4750 5000
If	  applicable,	  include	  value	  of	  in-‐kind	  support	  as	  
"other".

SUBTOTAL $275,596 $275,953 $279,326

TOTAL	  REVENUES $275,596 $275,953 $279,326
TOTAL	  TCTP* $37,000 $37,000 $38,110
TCTP	  Share 13.4% 13.4% 13.6%

EXPENSES	  	  	  
List	  major	  categories	  of	  expenses Grants $56,100 $54,430 $54,500
Add	  or	  delete	  lines/rows	  as	  needed Personnel	  Wages $96,563 $99,460 $102,440
Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project Personnel	  Fringe $11,897 $13,075 $14,200

Artist/Professional	  Fees $9,200 $9,000 $9,000
Materials $7,600 $7,800 $8,000
Services $15,300 $14,900 $15,000
Occupancy	  and	  Utilities $14,786 $15,779 $16,273
Travel $600 $700 $700
Administration $22,970 $20,766 $20,000
Marketing	  &	  Advertising $44,456 $45,056 $46,000
Marketing	  &	  Advertising

SUBTOTAL $279,472 $280,966 $286,113

TOTAL	  EXPENSES $279,472 $280,966 $286,113
TOTAL	  TCTP* 37000 37000 38110
TCTP	  share 13.2% 13.2% 13.3%

REVENUES	  LESS	  EXPENSES -‐$3,876 -‐$5,013 -‐$6,787

*TCTP-‐Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER	  PAGE	  
2013	  Budget	  Request	  Form	  
Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program	  
	  
I.	   BASIC	  INFORMATION	  
	  
Program:	  	   CAP	  –	  Ticket	  Center	   	   	   	  

Applicant	  Organization:	  	   Community	  Arts	  Partnership	   	   	  

Contact	  Person:	  	   Brett	  Bossard	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  _______	  

Phone:	  	  607-‐273-‐5072	  	  	  	   	  	  Email:	  director@artspartner.org	  	   	  

2013	  Request:	  	  $	  22,400	   	  	  	  Product	  Development	  or	  Marketing?	  	  	   Product	  development	  	  

Year	  
Tourism	  Program	  
Allocation**	  

$	  Change	   %	  Change	  
%	  of	  Program	  

Budget*	  

2010	   29,755	   -‐	   -‐	   20.4%	  
2011	   	  21,755	   -‐8,000	   -‐26.9%	   	  15%	  
2012	   21,755	   0	   0%	   10.6%	  

Request	  2013	   22,400	   645	   3%	   9.9%	  
*	  Enter	  the	  %	  of	  the	  total	  program	  budget	  that	  would	  come	  from	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program.	  
**	  Enter	  modified	  budget	  amounts	  where	  applicable.	  
	  
II.	   PROGRAM	  DESCRIPTION	  
Describe	  the	  program	  in	  two	  or	  three	  sentences.	  	  
Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca	  sells	  the	  tickets	  of	  the	  preponderance	  of	  performing	  arts	  organizations	  and	  
venues	  in	  Tompkins	  County.	  	  Utilizing	  licensed	  software	  from	  Tickets.com,	  the	  Ticket	  Center	  
provides	  phone,	  walk-‐up	  and	  internet	  ticket	  sales	  support	  	  as	  well	  as	  aggregate	  marketing	  for	  
client	  organizations.	  Beginning	  in	  2012,	  TCI	  will	  also	  provide	  “night	  of	  show”	  box	  office	  staff	  
support	  at	  venues.	  
	  
III.	   CHALLENGES	  &	  OPPORTUNITIES	  	  
Very	  briefly	  state	  overarching	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  related	  to	  your	  program	  (current	  or	  
anticipated	  in	  2013)	  and	  describe	  you	  how	  propose	  to	  address	  them.	  
The	  recent	  effort	  to	  reintegrate	  the	  State	  Theatre	  of	  Ithaca	  has	  provided	  both	  challenges	  and	  
opportunities	  for	  TCI.	  Negotiating	  standards	  of	  service	  for	  many	  disparate	  clients	  with	  varying	  
service	  needs	  proved	  to	  be	  the	  biggest	  challenge.	  Now	  that	  signed	  service	  agreements	  are	  in	  
place,	  however,	  the	  opportunity	  to	  migrate	  to	  a	  new	  ticketing	  software	  package	  and	  to	  grow	  the	  
total	  ticket	  inventory	  sold	  through	  TCI	  should	  have	  the	  lasting	  impact	  of	  making	  the	  community	  
asset	  a	  model	  of	  shared	  services	  that	  is	  financially	  sustainable	  .	  	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.	   BUDGET	  NARRATIVE	  
Describe	  how	  you	  propose	  to	  use	  the	  requested	  funds.	  You	  may	  also	  use	  this	  section	  to	  expand	  
on	  your	  answers	  to	  questions	  II	  and	  III.	  
The	  funds	  requested	  are	  general	  operating	  support	  for	  salaries,	  facility	  rental,	  and	  utilities.	  Over	  
the	  past	  several	  years,	  the	  total	  volume	  of	  tickets	  sold	  at	  the	  ticket	  center	  did	  not	  produce	  
enough	  per-‐ticket	  and	  transaction	  fees	  to	  fully	  support	  the	  operations.	  Client	  organizations	  
contributed	  fees	  based	  on	  the	  group	  and	  subscription	  tickets	  (which	  collect	  no	  per-‐ticket	  fees	  
from	  the	  patron)	  processed	  by	  the	  Ticket	  Center,	  and	  the	  Tourism	  Program	  funds	  were	  used	  to	  fill	  
the	  remaining	  gap.	  	  
	  
In	  2012,	  the	  migration	  to	  a	  new	  ticketing	  software	  and	  the	  reintegration	  of	  the	  State	  Theatre’s	  
ticket	  inventory	  began.	  The	  new	  ticketing	  software,	  while	  more	  expensive	  to	  license,	  provides	  
access	  to	  increased	  revenue	  through	  on-‐line	  ticketing	  fees.	  Likewise,	  the	  increased	  ticket	  volume	  
from	  the	  State	  Theatre	  should	  allow	  the	  Ticket	  Center	  to	  finally	  reach	  the	  “Critical	  Mass”	  
necessary	  to	  support	  operations	  solely	  through	  per-‐ticket	  and	  transaction	  fees	  to	  event	  patrons.	  
In	  the	  first	  18	  months	  of	  transferring	  to	  the	  new	  ticketing	  software,	  however,	  start-‐up	  costs	  and	  
the	  varied	  schedules	  of	  participating	  client	  productions	  require	  an	  additional	  year	  of	  subsidy	  from	  
the	  Tourism	  Program	  before	  the	  operation	  can	  be	  self-‐sustaining.	  Projected	  revenues	  currently	  
indicate	  that	  Tourism	  Program	  support	  for	  Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca	  will	  not	  be	  necessary	  in	  2014.	  
 
V.	   PROGRAM	  GOALS	  
List	  and	  describe	  program	  goals	  for	  2013,	  using	  the	  sample	  format.	  For	  each	  goal	  listed,	  
describe	  how	  you	  will	  measure	  achievement	  of	  that	  goal	  (you	  may	  list	  more	  than	  one	  measure	  
of	  achievement	  for	  each	  goal).	  This	  will	  require	  you	  to	  consider	  appropriate	  numerical	  
measures	  and	  baselines.	  	  
	  
Also,	  which	  goals	  of	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Strategic	  Tourism	  Plan	  does	  this	  program	  respond	  to,	  
and	  how	  do	  your	  proposed	  program	  goals	  align	  with	  goals	  stated	  in	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  plan?	  
	  

Goal	  1:	  Complete	  transition	  to	  ProVenue	  Ticketing	  system.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  1A:	  All	  on-‐sale	  tickets	  processed	  through	  web-‐based	  ProVenue	  
product	  
	  
As	  the	  migration	  from	  ProVenueMax	  (a	  locally	  hosted	  software)	  to	  ProVenue	  (a	  web	  
hosted	  system)	  continues	  through	  2012,	  Ticket	  Center	  employees	  continue	  to	  sell	  tickets	  
in	  both	  of	  the	  systems.	  	  As	  new	  seasons	  of	  productions	  begin	  for	  client	  organizations,	  
those	  events	  will	  be	  sold	  in	  the	  new	  software,	  and	  the	  old	  product	  will	  be	  incrementlally	  
phased	  out.	  The	  completion	  of	  this	  changeover	  will	  increase	  efficiency	  and	  eliminate	  the	  
additional	  training	  necessary	  for	  new	  hires.	  	  

	  
Goal	  2:	  Increase	  use	  of	  Ticket	  Center	  services	  by	  performing	  arts	  groups	  in	  Tompkins	  
County.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  2A:	  Add	  at	  least	  5	  new	  ticketing	  clients.	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

	  
The	  reintegration	  of	  the	  State	  Theatre	  in	  2012	  will	  certainly	  improve	  the	  visibility	  of	  the	  
Ticket	  Center	  as	  a	  community	  service,	  but	  the	  inclusion	  of	  more	  of	  our	  community’s	  
smaller	  organizations	  in	  the	  roster	  of	  clients	  will	  cement	  TCI’s	  identity	  as	  THE	  central	  
location	  for	  all	  performing	  arts	  news,	  information,	  and,	  of	  course,	  tickets.	  Recent	  
improvements	  to	  the	  location	  and	  customer	  service	  at	  TCI	  have	  already	  attracted	  new	  
clients	  like	  the	  Winter	  Valley	  Bluegrass	  Festival,	  the	  Actor’s	  Workshop	  of	  Ithaca,	  and	  the	  
Ithaca	  Festival.	  Our	  Director	  of	  Ticketing	  Services	  continues	  to	  cultivate	  her	  relationships	  
with	  area	  artists,	  performers,	  and	  club	  venues	  to	  add	  more	  to	  that	  growing	  list.	  
	  
Goal	  3:	  Increase	  visibility	  of	  Ticket	  Center	  services	  throughout	  online	  and	  collateral	  
marketing.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  3A:	  Increase	  click-‐through	  rates	  on	  email	  marketing	  from	  7%	  to	  
12%.	  
	  
One	  of	  TCI’s	  greatest	  assets	  is	  its	  central	  database	  of	  ticket	  buyer	  information.	  In	  2009,	  we	  
began	  using	  the	  Constant	  Contact	  email	  service	  to	  reach	  out	  to	  the	  more	  than	  8,000	  ticket	  
buyers	  from	  whom	  we’d	  collected	  email	  addresses.	  Utilizing	  a	  monthly	  newsletter	  format	  
that	  promoted	  ALL	  of	  the	  clients	  of	  the	  Ticket	  Center,	  we	  were	  able	  to	  expand	  knowledge	  
and	  visibility	  of	  each	  client’s	  programming	  to	  their	  own	  patrons	  as	  well	  as	  those	  of	  the	  
other	  organizations	  using	  our	  service.	  The	  analytics	  from	  Constant	  Contact	  show	  the	  open	  
rate	  of	  these	  newsletters	  at	  or	  above	  the	  industry	  average,	  but	  click-‐through	  rates	  have	  
been	  slightly	  below	  average.	  Our	  Director	  of	  Ticketing	  Services	  has	  already	  begun	  
attending	  in-‐person	  and	  web-‐based	  workshops	  on	  methods	  to	  improve	  the	  number	  of	  
clicks—and	  sales—generated	  by	  this	  email	  marketing	  tool.	  
.	  	  
	  

All	  of	  these	  goals	  serve	  to	  enhance	  the	  brand	  of	  Tompkins	  County	  as	  the	  premier	  arts	  
community	  in	  the	  region	  and	  align	  with	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  goal	  to	  develop	  Ithaca	  and	  
Tompkins	  County	  as	  a	  central	  arts,	  cultural	  and	  heritage	  tourism	  destination	  in	  the	  Finger	  Lakes	  	  
	  
VI.	  	   ACHIEVEMENTS	  
Please	  describe	  your	  most	  significant	  program	  achievements	  during	  2011	  and	  the	  first	  quarter	  
(January	  through	  March)	  of	  2012.	  If	  possible,	  please	  use	  this	  as	  an	  opportunity	  to	  restate	  your	  
program	  goals	  for	  the	  2011	  and	  2012	  budget	  years	  and	  describe	  progress	  towards	  these	  goals.	  
	  
As	  previously	  mentioned,	  the	  greatest	  achievement	  in	  the	  past	  year	  was	  reaching	  an	  agreement	  
with	  all	  ticketing	  clients	  to	  move	  forward	  together	  and	  migrate	  to	  the	  new	  ProVenue	  Ticketing	  
System.	  The	  increased	  communication	  needed	  for	  this	  to	  occur	  has	  had	  the	  additional	  benefit	  of	  
improving	  client	  relations	  as	  well	  as	  customer	  service	  with	  patrons.	  
 
The	  addition	  of	  new	  staff	  and	  the	  promotion	  of	  Mellissa	  Goldsmith	  to	  the	  position	  of	  Director	  of	  
Ticketing	  Services	  has	  had	  a	  strong	  positive	  impact	  on	  the	  face	  of	  TCI.	  Praise	  from	  patrons	  via	  
card,	  email,	  and	  follow-‐up	  phone	  calls	  has	  become	  a	  regular	  occurance.	  The	  physical	  location	  in	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Center	  Ithaca	  has	  also	  received	  improvements,	  as	  Assistant	  Director	  Andrew	  Baker	  has	  taken	  on	  
organization	  and	  beautification	  as	  a	  goal.	  	  
	  
Lastly,	  the	  continued	  coordination	  of	  support	  with	  staff	  from	  the	  Downtown	  Visitor	  Center	  has	  
truly	  hit	  its	  stride.	  Communication	  between	  staff	  and	  management	  at	  both	  operations	  has	  
ensured	  that	  any	  visitor	  to	  the	  location	  receives	  quick	  attention	  and	  assistance.	  
 
	  
VII.	  	   IMPACT	  OF	  FUNDING	  
What	  would	  be	  the	  specific	  impact	  of	  receiving	  less	  funding	  than	  you	  are	  requesting?	  For	  
example,	  what	  are	  the	  things	  that	  you	  would	  like	  to	  be	  able	  to	  do	  that	  you	  would	  not	  be	  able	  to	  
do?	  What	  would	  be	  removed	  or	  reduced	  from	  your	  plans	  if	  you	  had	  to	  make	  do	  with	  less	  than	  
requested?	  
Since	  this	  funding	  is	  largely	  for	  staff	  support,	  a	  reduction	  from	  the	  requested	  amount	  would	  most	  
likely	  result	  in	  a	  reduction	  of	  hours	  and/or	  staff	  support.	  
	  
VIII.	  	   COLLABORATION	  
What	  steps	  have	  you	  taken	  and	  do	  you	  propose	  to	  take	  to	  further	  collaboration	  and	  
information	  and	  resource	  sharing	  between	  your	  program(s)	  and	  other	  room-‐tax	  funded	  
programs?	  
Ticket	  Center	  Ithaca	  exists	  for	  precisely	  this	  reason.	  The	  collaboration	  with	  clients	  like	  the	  Cayuga	  
Chamber	  Orchestra,	  Hangar	  Theatre,	  Kitchen	  Theatre,	  State	  Theatre,	  Winter	  Valley	  Blue	  Grass	  
Festival	  and	  many	  others	  provides	  multiple	  sales	  outlets	  and	  a	  single	  resource	  for	  admission	  to	  
arts	  and	  culture	  in	  Tompkins	  County.	  As	  TCI	  takes	  on	  more	  clients,	  the	  opportunities	  for	  
information	  sharing	  will	  only	  increase.	  
	  



2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1

Ticket Center Ithaca
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE	  
	  (Modified)	  
2011	  Budget	   2012	  Budget 2013	  Budget Notes

List	  major	  categories	  of	  revenues TCTP* 21755 21755 22400
Add	  or	  delete	  lines/rows	  as	  needed Client	  Fees $24,000 19200 1000

Per	  Ticket	  Fees $63,000 96000 125000
Transaction	  Fees	  (Phone,	  Internet,	  etc) $12,300 23800 42500
Visitor	  Center	  Rent $11,000 11500 11500
Credit	  Card	  Fee	  Pass	  Through $10,000 20000 20000

Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project Misc	  Income $3,000 13000 3000
If	  applicable,	  include	  value	  of	  in-‐kind	  support	  as	  
"other".

SUBTOTAL $145,055 $205,255 $225,400

TOTAL	  REVENUES $145,055 $205,255 $225,400
TOTAL	  TCTP* $21,755 $21,755 $22,400
TCTP	  Share 15.0% 10.6% 9.9%

EXPENSES	  	  	  
List	  major	  categories	  of	  expenses Grants $0 $0 $0
Add	  or	  delete	  lines/rows	  as	  needed Personnel	  Wages $70,950 $71,825 $77,200
Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project Personnel	  Fringe $8,600 $7,500 $11,500

Materials $5,250 $16,500 $9,200
Services	  &	  Licensing $11,300 $44,500 $53,500
Occupancy	  and	  Utilities $25,132 $26,964 $27,908
Administration $9,241 $11,683 $8,900
Credit	  Card	  Fee	  Pass	  Through $10,000 $20,000 $20,000

SUBTOTAL $140,473 $198,972 $208,208

TOTAL	  EXPENSES $140,473 $198,972 $208,208
TOTAL	  TCTP* 21755 21755 22400
TCTP	  share 15.5% 10.9% 10.8%

REVENUES	  LESS	  EXPENSES $4,582 $6,283 $17,192
ACTUAL	  REVNUES	  LESS	  EXPENSES -$9,432

*TCTP-‐Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER	  PAGE	  
2013	  Budget	  Request	  Form	  
Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program	  
	  
I.	   BASIC	  INFORMATION	  
	  
Program:	  	   CAP	  –	  Market	  the	  Arts	   	   	   	  

Applicant	  Organization:	  	   Community	  Arts	  Partnership	   	   	  

Contact	  Person:	  	   Brett	  Bossard	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  _______	  

Phone:	  	  607-‐273-‐5072	  	  	  	   	  	  Email:	  director@artspartner.org	  	   	  

2013	  Request:	  	  $	  10,300	   	  	  	  Product	  Development	  or	  Marketing?	  	  	   Marketing	   	   	  

Year	  
Tourism	  Program	  
Allocation**	  

$	  Change	   %	  Change	  
%	  of	  Program	  

Budget*	  

2010	   0	   -‐	   -‐	   0%	  
2011	   10,000	   10,000	   100%	   	  22.5%	  
2012	   10,000	   0	   0%	   22.2%	  

Request	  2013	   10,300	   300	   3%	   22.4%	  
*	  Enter	  the	  %	  of	  the	  total	  program	  budget	  that	  would	  come	  from	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program.	  
**	  Enter	  modified	  budget	  amounts	  where	  applicable.	  
	  
II.	   PROGRAM	  DESCRIPTION	  
Describe	  the	  program	  in	  two	  or	  three	  sentences.	  	  
The	  Market	  the	  Arts	  initiative	  launched	  in	  2009	  with	  a	  plan	  to	  strengthen	  and	  augment	  existing	  
regional,	  year-‐round	  marketing	  for	  aggregate	  arts	  marketing	  projects	  including	  IthacaEvents.com,	  
the	  Greater	  Ithaca	  Art	  Trail,	  the	  Arts	  Registry	  at	  ArtsPartner.org,	  and	  Downtown	  Ithaca’s	  First	  
Friday	  Gallery	  Night.	  	  
	  
Using	  a	  “whole	  is	  greater	  than	  the	  sum	  of	  its	  parts”	  approach,	  these	  group	  efforts	  serve	  to	  
elevate	  the	  county’s	  image	  as	  an	  arts	  destination,	  promote	  new	  visitation,	  enhance	  and/or	  
prolong	  stays,	  and	  increase	  the	  quality	  of	  life	  for	  residents	  and	  our	  resident	  artists	  
	  
III.	   CHALLENGES	  &	  OPPORTUNITIES	  	  
Very	  briefly	  state	  overarching	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  related	  to	  your	  program	  (current	  or	  
anticipated	  in	  2013)	  and	  describe	  you	  how	  propose	  to	  address	  them.	  
The	  growth	  of	  social	  media	  platforms	  continues	  to	  be	  an	  opportunity	  for	  targeted	  marketing	  
efforts.	  Ad	  buys	  on	  social	  media	  tend	  to	  be	  economic	  and	  effective,	  allowing	  for	  greater	  and	  more	  
frequent	  positioning.	  The	  savings	  realized	  with	  these	  options	  should	  allow	  additional	  marketing	  
across	  a	  broader	  geographic	  area	  in	  more	  traditional	  media	  like	  broadcast	  and	  print.	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.	   BUDGET	  NARRATIVE	  
Describe	  how	  you	  propose	  to	  use	  the	  requested	  funds.	  You	  may	  also	  use	  this	  section	  to	  expand	  
on	  your	  answers	  to	  questions	  II	  and	  III.	  
The	  funds	  requested	  are	  used	  to	  supplement	  CAP’s	  existing	  media/marketing	  plans.	  Funded	  
items	  include	  collateral	  distribution	  throughout	  NYS	  as	  well	  as	  advertising	  buys	  online	  
(Facebooks,	  Adwords)	  and	  in	  traditional	  media	  in	  the	  Rochester,	  Syracuse,	  and	  Southern	  Tier	  
markets,	  including	  public	  radio	  underwriting	  on	  WSKG,	  WXXI,	  and	  WEOS	  and	  print	  advertising	  in	  
the	  Eagle	  suburban	  newspaper	  group.	  
 
V.	   PROGRAM	  GOALS	  
List	  and	  describe	  program	  goals	  for	  2013,	  using	  the	  sample	  format.	  For	  each	  goal	  listed,	  
describe	  how	  you	  will	  measure	  achievement	  of	  that	  goal	  (you	  may	  list	  more	  than	  one	  measure	  
of	  achievement	  for	  each	  goal).	  This	  will	  require	  you	  to	  consider	  appropriate	  numerical	  
measures	  and	  baselines.	  	  
Also,	  which	  goals	  of	  the	  Tompkins	  County	  Strategic	  Tourism	  Plan	  does	  this	  program	  respond	  to,	  
and	  how	  do	  your	  proposed	  program	  goals	  align	  with	  goals	  stated	  in	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  plan?	  
	  

Goal	  1:	  Improve	  visibility	  of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  Arts	  Sector	  through	  online	  promotion.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  2A:	  Increase	  total	  annual	  unique	  visitors	  to	  ArtTrail.com,	  
ArtsPartner.org,	  and	  IthacaEvents.com	  from	  100,000	  to	  120,000	  
	  
The	  three	  websites	  administered	  by	  CAP	  each	  have	  a	  distinct	  role	  to	  play	  in	  the	  promotion	  
of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  arts	  community.	  IthacaEvents.com	  offers	  a	  “one-‐stop	  shop”	  for	  
residents	  and	  visitors	  looking	  for	  upcoming	  events	  and	  festivals	  (~60,000	  unique	  visitors	  in	  
2011);	  the	  Artist	  Registry	  at	  ArtsPartner.org	  provides	  visibility	  and	  support	  for	  individual	  
artists	  looking	  to	  reach	  potential	  patrons;	  and	  ArtTrail.com	  offers	  the	  unique	  opportunity	  
to	  visit	  artist	  studios	  and	  “see	  art	  where	  it	  happens.”	  Online	  advertising	  for	  the	  three	  sites	  
will	  increase	  exposure	  to	  a	  potentially	  international	  audience.	  

 
Goal	  2:	  Increase	  media	  coverage	  of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  arts	  sector.	  
Measure	  of	  Achievement	  2A:	  Appear	  in	  3	  regional	  publications	  and	  1	  national	  publication.	  
	  
The	  Greater	  Ithaca	  Art	  Trail,	  in	  particular,	  has	  attracted	  a	  great	  deal	  of	  attention	  on	  a	  
regional	  and	  national	  scale,	  with	  coverage	  in	  The	  Crafts	  Report,	  Life	  in	  the	  Finger	  Lakes,	  
and	  several	  other	  publications.	  Utilizing	  the	  strength	  of	  this	  and	  other	  programs	  that	  
highlight	  the	  depth	  and	  breadth	  of	  Tompkins	  County’s	  arts	  community,	  we’ll	  continue	  to	  
promote	  Ithaca	  to	  culture	  and	  travel	  writers.	  

 
All	  of	  these	  goals	  serve	  to	  enhance	  the	  brand	  of	  Tompkins	  County	  as	  the	  premier	  arts	  
community	  in	  the	  region	  and	  align	  with	  the	  strategic	  tourism	  goal	  to	  develop	  Ithaca	  and	  
Tompkins	  County	  as	  a	  central	  arts,	  cultural	  and	  heritage	  tourism	  destination	  in	  the	  Finger	  
Lakes.	  	  
	  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

VI.	  	   ACHIEVEMENTS	  
Please	  describe	  your	  most	  significant	  program	  achievements	  during	  2011	  and	  the	  first	  quarter	  
(January	  through	  March)	  of	  2012.	  If	  possible,	  please	  use	  this	  as	  an	  opportunity	  to	  restate	  your	  
program	  goals	  for	  the	  2011	  and	  2012	  budget	  years	  and	  describe	  progress	  towards	  these	  goals.	  
	  

• While	  the	  total	  visits	  at	  Art	  Trail	  studios	  during	  2011	  open	  studio	  weekends	  dropped	  
slightly	  from	  2010,	  total	  sales	  were	  steady,	  and	  a	  new	  feature	  has	  been	  introduced	  in	  
2012	  –	  First	  Saturdays.	  On	  the	  First	  Saturday	  of	  each	  month,	  selected	  Art	  Trail	  member	  
studios	  open	  to	  the	  public,	  with	  promotions	  online	  and	  on	  collateral	  distributed	  
throughout	  the	  preceding	  First	  Friday	  Gallery	  Night	  in	  Downtown	  Ithaca.	  While	  only	  5	  
months	  old,	  the	  First	  Saturday	  program	  has	  already	  generated	  a	  great	  deal	  of	  attention	  
and—more	  importantly—sales	  for	  participating	  artists.	  

• Since	  the	  relaunch	  in	  2010,	  the	  new	  IthacaEvents.com	  has	  seen	  a	  remarkable	  growth	  in	  
visitation.	  Google	  analytics	  shows	  nearly	  60,000	  unique	  visitors	  in	  the	  first	  full	  year.	  Of	  
those	  visitors,	  	  19%	  visited	  the	  site	  from	  out	  of	  state.	  Of	  all	  New	  York	  visitors,	  34%	  visited	  
the	  site	  from	  outside	  Tompkins	  County.	  All	  told,	  IthacaEvents.com	  generated	  more	  than	  
260,000	  pageviews	  in	  calendar	  year	  2011.	  The	  numbers	  from	  2012	  are	  trending	  up	  from	  
those	  last	  year.	  
	  

	  
VII.	  	   IMPACT	  OF	  FUNDING	  
What	  would	  be	  the	  specific	  impact	  of	  receiving	  less	  funding	  than	  you	  are	  requesting?	  For	  
example,	  what	  are	  the	  things	  that	  you	  would	  like	  to	  be	  able	  to	  do	  that	  you	  would	  not	  be	  able	  to	  
do?	  What	  would	  be	  removed	  or	  reduced	  from	  your	  plans	  if	  you	  had	  to	  make	  do	  with	  less	  than	  
requested?	  
Since	  this	  funding	  is	  used	  for	  media	  buys,	  the	  result	  of	  receiving	  less	  than	  requested	  would	  be	  less	  
promotion	  for	  the	  programs	  listed	  above.	  The	  most	  expensive	  items,	  such	  as	  underwriting	  in	  the	  
Rochester	  market	  would	  be	  the	  first	  cut.	  
	  
VIII.	  	   COLLABORATION	  
What	  steps	  have	  you	  taken	  and	  do	  you	  propose	  to	  take	  to	  further	  collaboration	  and	  
information	  and	  resource	  sharing	  between	  your	  program(s)	  and	  other	  room-‐tax	  funded	  
programs?	  
We	  hope	  to	  increase	  coordination	  with	  both	  the	  CVB	  and	  with	  Downtown	  Ithaca	  on	  future	  
efforts.	  Previous	  efforts	  to	  co-‐promote	  include	  trading	  advertising	  in	  the	  downtown	  and	  travel	  
guides.	  Cooperative	  media	  buys	  could	  also	  add	  more	  bang	  for	  the	  buck.	  
	  
	  	  
	  



2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1

Market the Arts
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE	  
	  (Modified)	  
2011	  Budget	   2012	  Budget 2013	  Budget Notes

List	  major	  categories	  of	  revenues TCTP* 10000 10000 10300
NYSCA	  &	  Other	  Grants $4,500 4000 4500
Art	  Trail	  Fees $27,000 28000 28000

Separate	  by	  project	  if	  more	  than	  one	  project Portion	  of	  Artist	  Market	  Fees $3,000 3100 3200
If	  applicable,	  include	  value	  of	  in-‐kind	  support	  as	  
"other".

SUBTOTAL $44,500 $45,100 $46,000

TOTAL	  REVENUES $44,500 $45,100 $46,000
TOTAL	  TCTP* $10,000 $10,000 $10,300
TCTP	  Share 22.5% 22.2% 22.4%

EXPENSES	  	  	  
Marketing,	  Events,	  Web	  &	  Advertising $44,456 $45,056 $46,000

SUBTOTAL $44,456 $45,056 $46,000

TOTAL	  EXPENSES $44,456 $45,056 $46,000
TOTAL	  TCTP* 10000 10000 10300
TCTP	  share 22.5% 22.2% 22.4%

REVENUES	  LESS	  EXPENSES $44 $44 $0

*TCTP-‐Tompkins	  County	  Tourism	  Program



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I. BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program:  Festivals Program 

Applicant Organization: Downtown Ithaca Alliance 

Contact Person: Gary Ferguson 

Phone:  277-8679   Email: gary@downtownithaca.com 

2013 Request:  $25,000   Product Development or Marketing?  Product 

Year 
Tourism Program 

Allocation** 
$ Change % Change 

% of Program 
Budget* 

2010  20,000       

2011  25,000      89% 

2012 25,000      89% 

Request 2013  25,000     89%  
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences.  
The Festivals program provides technical assistance and support to the TCTP/STPB. It works 
directly with prospective and awarded grantees to ensure that their events/products meet 
tourism program goals and objectives and that applicants and grantees are able to prepare and 
deliver the best possible products. 
 
III. CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
Challenges include (a) constricting municipal budgets that will impose more burdens on event 
planners, (b) succession planning involving existing and ongoing events, and (c) making events 
integrate better with their host communities for economic benefit/secondary spending. The 
Festival technical assistance and workshop programs address these issues directly. The 
acquisition of shared equipment helps to reduce costs and burden to events.  
 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

 
 
IV. BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
Funds will be used as follows:   
 

1. One-on-One Technical assistance: Ongoing in-person and phone/email based technical support for 
prospective STPB applicants and grant awardees. 
 Goals:  

a. To interact with all awardees to review plans and provide consulting advice 
b. To meet in group settings with all prospective applicants to help applicants 

understand STPB priorities and to explain key event planning issues and concerns. 
d.  To work on an in-depth basis with up to 6 events on planning and implementation 

needs 
Cost: $17,000 

  
2. Workshop technical assistance: To provide both awardees and non-awardees with a series of 

workshops dedicated to specific shared issues pertaining to event planning and implementation. 
Goals:  

a. Plan, promote, and manage three workshops in 2013. Proposed topics may include, 
but not be limited to, Municipal regulations and requirements, budgeting, emergency 
plans, linking your event with tourists, cross promoting events with your local 
community, working with volunteers, event succession planning .  

b. To provide a workshop for prospective grantees on TCTP/STPB goals, objectives, and 
priorities for funding. 

c. To provide a workshop for successful grantees on implementation issues and grant 
fulfillment requirements. 

Cost: $3,000 
 

3. STPB Festival management 
Goals: 

a. Create an evaluation platform for STPB supported events 
b. Revise applications to reflect STPB festival strategic elements 
c. Manage and continue to add to the festivals website 

Cost: Included in #1 above 
 

4. Equipment:  Continue the shared equipment program 
Goals: 

a. Determine equipment needs 
b. Purchase equipment 
c. Develop contracts for equipment sharing 

Cost: $5,000 

 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

V. PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 
See item IV. For program goals and measures. 
The Festival program has been designed to address the festival section of the strategic plan and 
its four objectives: 
Measurable Objective #1: 
No major events lost between 2012 and 2020 
Measurable Objective #2: 
Add 2-4 major events to Tompkins County by 2020 
Measurable Objective #3: 
Increase bed nights directly associated with events by 75% between 2012 and 2020. 
Measurable Objective #4: 
Increase additional spending directly associated with events by 50% by 2020. 
 
VI.  ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
Please refer to attached report Summary of Activities. We have continued to provide these 
services in the first quarter of 2012, including working extensively with Dragon Boat Festival to 
expand to a multi-day event with the goal of creating a 3 day paddling festival in Tompkins 
County.  
 
VII.  IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
The amount of funding determines the level of technical assistance we can provide. Should 
funding be reduced, we would correspondingly reduce the amount of service we could provide to 
applicants, grantees, and municipalities. 
 
 
VIII.  COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room-tax funded programs? 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

A key step that has been discussed and will be implemented in the coming months will be 
amending the application forms to reflect TCTP goals and objectives for festivals, particularly as 
they relate to community benefit and linkage. We also want to forge closer relationships with the 
committees that make the grant recommendations. Additional collaboration with the Convention 
and Visitors Bureau and Community Arts Partnership will expand the reach of the program.  
 
 

 



Tompkins County Festival Program Summary of Activities 

Update to the Festivals Committee of the Strategic Tourism Planning Board 

Grant Program 

There are four components to the Festivals Program grant to the Downtown Ithaca Alliance:  

1. Technical Assistance 

2. Website Development  

3. Equipment Purchasing 

4. Production of a Strategic Plan  
 

Technical Assistance 

Technical assistance was provided by the festivals program throughout 2011 and into 2012. Assistance included help-

ing to stabilize events and organizations, as well as assisting with long term vision, event design, education (from un-

derstanding the responsibilities of boards to how to use software), marketing, budgeting, grants writing, volunteer 

recruitment, coordination, restructuring components of events for efficiency, working to improve the tourism draw of 

events, safety and accessibility planning, troubleshooting, fundraising, site use and access, parking plans, co-

promotion, packaging and permitting.  

 

Events and organizations that were assisted include Ithaca Festival, Grassroots Festival of Music & Dance, Dragon Boat 

Festival, Ithaca Scottish Games, Cornell University, Ithaca College, Puerto Rico Festival, First People’s Festival, Ithaca 

Triathlon Club, Community Arts Partnership, Cancer Resource Center, Light in Winter Festival, Rhiner Festival, Finger 

Lakes Environmental Film Festival, Finger Lakes Wine Center, AIDS Ride for Life, Franziska Racker Center, West End 

Waterfront, Ithaca Asian American Association, Sabado Gigante, Ithaca Fire Department, Latino Civic Association, 

Greater Ithaca Activities Center, State Theatre of Ithaca, Community School of Music & Arts, Cinemapolis, Ithaca Chil-

dren’s Garden, Cornell Cooperative Extension, Ithaca Youth Bureau, Friends of Stewart Park, Family & Childrens Ser-

vice, St. Catherine’s International Festival, Greenstar Oasis, Tompkins Trust Company, the History Center, restaurants 

and wineries, plus events in the planning stages including a new Fringe Festival and Fantastic Film Festival. In addition 

we worked with the City of Ithaca during the year to develop new special events policies and structure, as well as as-

sisting most events that obtain permits within City limits. This also required advocacy on behalf of events due to the 

proposed fee structure and reduction in services.  

Our team also managed our DIA events including Chili Cook-off, Apple Harvest Festival, First Friday Gallery Nights, 

Summer Concerts, Winter Festival including Ice Wars and Chowder Festival, Halloween, Downtown Living Tours, Res-

taurant Week, and Downtown Employee Appreciation Week.  

Website 

A website resource was created with the new domain www.tompkinsfestivals.com. The password protected site 

(login: tcfestivals pwd: festivals) is now available for use by local event planners. Features on the site include the 

online version of the events manual, positions available, Information/Data request form, a planning calendar, and oth-



er resource links for equipment and workshops. The site is designed to be interactive.  

Equipment Purchasing 

The Downtown Ithaca Alliance was able to procure equipment in 2011 for the Festivals program. Purchases included 

20 tables, 40 chairs, a bounce house, and pop up tents. In addition, DIA and staff equipment was made available to 

events including sound systems, staging, generators, as well as other electrical and safety equipment.  

Strategic Plan 

The Downtown Ithaca Alliance has been working on the Strategic Plan for Festivals. This plan outlines the steps that 

should be taken by the Strategic Tourism Planning Board, as well as events planners, to make events more successful 

for tourism and for the community.   

Youth Program 

Working with the Ithaca Youth Bureau Youth Employment Service, led by Mike Smith, the festival program has intro-

duced youth to festival planning and micro-business. This entrepreneurial program has been going on for two years 

with youth working on various festivals operating stands, including marketing, advertising, finances, signage, menu 

design etc. In 2011, the YES program produced the first annual Banana Festival. The event was designed and imple-

mented 100% by students in the program.  

Festival Program Interns 

The Downtown Ithaca Alliance has hired work study and other interns to assist with the festivals program since the 

summer of 2010. Each semester and during the summer, interns are assigned to festivals gaining valuable events 

knowledge and also providing important assistance to the events. Interns have participated from Cornell, Ithaca Col-

lege, and TC3.  

Challenges 

The program has not been without challenges. Some of the larger concerns include:  

 New event planners requiring significant education before being able to effectively and responsibly manage their 

events. Workshops for new event planners will be put together in 2012 that include event basics. It is important 

though to cultivate new planners to increase the diversity in events being offered in the area.  

 Equipment breakages. Contracts are being developed to manage the risk associated with the loan program. Depos-

its will be required so that loss can be minimized.  

 Succession and expansion planning: Some events are not developing new leadership, and other events that are 

relying on all volunteer assistance are getting large and requiring more effective planning that comes from having a 

dedicated coordinator.   

 We continue to see few referrals and inquiries from outlying areas. This is going to require active solicitation. This 

likely can be accomplished by working closely with the Tourism Coordinator, Tom Knipe.  

 The financial crises faced by municipalities are having a great impact on events. We’ve now seen Ithaca Festival 

reduce its footprint due to proposed fee increases in the City of Ithaca. The impact will be greater on new, less so-

phisticated events, and events undertaken by diverse groups.  

 The Festivals program needs can sometimes exceed the available resources. The Downtown Ithaca Alliance has 

now hired a new Events Manager who is able to implement the DIA’s main events, thus allowing additional time to 

focus on this program. The DIA has been working with the Finger Lakes Wine Center to restructure, which delayed 

the deliverables for this project.  



STPB Festival Prog.
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE 

(Modified) 

2011 Budget  2012 Budget 2013 Budget Notes
List major categories of revenues TCTP 25,000 25,000 25,000
Add or delete lines/rows as needed DIA $3,000 3,000 3,000 DIA fringe for salaries
Separate by project if more than one project Other (name)
If applicable, include value of in‐kind support as 

"other".
SUBTOTAL $28,000 $28,000 $28,000

TOTAL REVENUES $28,000 $28,000 $28,000
TOTAL TCTP* $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
TCTP Share 89.3% 89.3% 89.3%

EXPENSES   
List major categories of expenses Grants
Add or delete lines/rows as needed Personnel Wages $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 tech. assist & wkshops
Separate by project if more than one project Personnel Fringe $3,000 $3,000 $3,000

Materials $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 shared equipment 
Services
Occupancy and Utilities
Travel
Administration
Other (name)

SUBTOTAL $28,000 $28,000 $28,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $28,000 $28,000 $28,000
TOTAL TCTP* 25,000 25,000 25,000
TCTP share 89.3% 89.3% 89.3%

REVENUES LESS EXPENSES $0 $0 $0

*TCTP‐Tompkins County Tourism Program

2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program:  Tourism Marketing & Advertising (TMA) Grants  

Applicant Organization: STPB TMA Committee 

Contact Person:   Ken Jupiter_____________    _______ 

Phone:    272‐4902    Email:   15steps@danica.com  

2013 Request:  $53,650     Product Development or Marketing?    Marketing 

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  $52,087        100% 

2011  $50,699  ‐$1,388  ‐2.7%  100% 

2012  $50,699  $0  0.0%  100% 

Request 2013  $53,650  $2,951  5.8%  100% 
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences.  
 
This program provides marketing assistance to arts and cultural organizations as well as events.  
Recipients work with the CVB to coordinate and reinforce our overall message to the visitor 
market.  This is a 50/50 matching grant program. 
 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
 
This program has primarily functioned as an addendum to other programs and has lacked 
coordination with other programs.  This makes it less efficient in moving the goals of our tourism 
plan forward. I hope that as we look at our current menu of programs alongside the new long 
range plan we can better integrate marketing in newly designed and tweaked programs. 
Some grant recipients fall short in terms of marketing strategies. Continued work with them will 
help improve their understanding. 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
 
We are requesting a 3% increase over the 2010 funding level of $52,087. This request is based on 
both the financial recovery that has taken place in room tax receipts and the projected increase 
in revenues. In addition, staff expects to increase the number of grant requests requiring a larger 
pool of funding. 
 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 
Applicants should receive instruction and encouragement in the writing and use of press releases. 
 
Prior applicants should increase by at least one, (over the prior years application) the number of 
partners that they work with in their plan in order to grow the economic benefit of the program. 
 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 
Many of the “critical actions” from the 2012‐2020 draft strategic tourism plan will be forwarded 
directly by the tourism grant programs.  In fact, the competitive grant programs can be seen as a 
primary driver of strategic tourism plan implementation.   
 
VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
The primary achievements of the grant programs are the project outcomes themselves, which are 
detailed in grant applications and reports. 
 
In addition, the Senior Planner/ Tourism Coordinator has made improvements to the grant 
management process in 2011 and early 2012, which translate to a more effective use of grant 
resources. These include: 

o Allowed New Tourism Initiative applicants to simultaneously apply for marketing 
support. 

o Improved application forms. 
o Moved application submission to electronic, saving hours and dollars on both the 

administrative end and applicant end in shuffling paper.  
o Developed a new system for review committees to view applications online. 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

o Led well‐attended and positively reviewed grant applicant workshops in 
September 2011 and January 2012.   

o Established an improved record‐keeping system for grants including a new grant 
application database that supports a streamlined grant management process and 
better availability of information about past grant applications and awards. 

o Clarified eligibility requirements and allowable expenses, and provided technical 
assistance to applicants in putting together their applications, leading to a 
noticeable improvement in the overall quality of applications. 

o Updated report forms and closely tracked reporting.   
 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
 
Less funding would push the committee to make harder decisions. I would be inclined to first look 
at funding fewer applicants as opposed to splitting the funding. 
 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room‐tax funded program. 
 
We should integrate marketing grants into other programs. This integration would give STPB 
better control of the use of funds and improve our ability to move our plan forward and increase 
the economic impact of our resources.  
 



Tourism Marketing & Advertising Grants
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE 

(Modified) 

2011 Budget  2012 Budget 2013 Budget Notes

TCTP* $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
SUBTOTAL $50,699 $50,699 $53,650

TOTAL REVENUES $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
TOTAL TCTP* $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
TCTP Share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

EXPENSES   
Grants $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
Administration $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL $50,699 $50,699 $53,650

TOTAL EXPENSES $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
TOTAL TCTP* $50,699 $50,699 $53,650
TCTP share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

REVENUES LESS EXPENSES $0 $0 $0

*TCTP‐Tompkins County Tourism Program

Actual 2011: $46,750 ($44,750 Exp, $2,000 Encumb), plus $2,235 to NTI)

2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program:   New Tourism Initiative Grants 

Applicant Organization: STPB New Tourism Initiative Grant Comm 

Contact Person:   Jon Reis________    _______ 

Phone:          Email: jon@jonreis.com 

2013 Request:  $96,500     Product Development or Marketing?    Marketing 

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  $30,000        100% 

2011  $62,015  $32,015  106.7%  100% 

2012  $66,445  $4,430  7.1%  100% 

Request 2013  $96,500  $30,055  45.2%  100% 
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable.  
 
II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences.  
 
New Tourism Initiative Grants support significant new tourism generating initiatives that flow from and are 
consistent with the Strategic Tourism Plan, and have been in existence for three years or less. 

 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
 
2012 New Tourism Initiative Grant applications increased 50% over 2011, and requests totaled $106,960. In 2012 and 
2013, the Tourism Program will encourage current and future partners to develop ideas to support strategic tourism 
plan implementation following the adoption of the 2012‐2020 strategic tourism plan later this year. New Tourism 
Initiative Grants are likely to be an important source of funding to support implementation of “critical actions” 
identified by the plan. 

 
There will be an opportunity in the second half of 2012 and in 2013 to overhaul the New Tourism Initiative Grant 
program to support alignment with strategic tourism plan implementation, streamline the application and review 
processes, and support more robust project evaluation. 

 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
 
Funds will be used to support New Tourism Initiative Grant proposals. We anticipate further growth in total requests 
in 2013 due to the work of the new Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator to proactively encourage and support 
applications. We also anticipate that the outreach that will accompany the release of the 2012‐2020 Strategic 
Tourism Plan will encourage even more applications to come forward in 2013. 

 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 

Goal 1: Increase overnight visitation and visitor spending associated with grant‐funded projects. 
Measure of Achievement 1A: Develop baseline figures for all funded projects and track numerical measures 
closely in 2012 and 2013, with a goal of every project showing increases of 10% over the previous year. 

 
Goal 2: Increase “packaging” of tourism projects with hotel properties, restaurants and other venues. 
Measure of Achievement 2A: Projects will be evaluated based on how well they deliver on packaging. With 
technical assistance, we can likely increase the number of entities with whom grantees for formal 
partnerships on packages by 25%. 

 
Goal 3: Promote financial sustainability of events and festivals that have received ongoing financial support 
by way of tourism project grants. 
Measure of Achievement 3A: Financial sustainability is incorporated into the grant guidelines and scoring 
rubric, and technical assistance on building in alternate revenues streams is provided through the Festivals 
Program.  
Measure of Achievement 3B: Requests from at least 2 longstanding projects are less in 2013 than they were 
in 2012. 

 
Goal 4: Increase the relative investment in projects with potential to expand activity during priority times 
such as winter and mid‐week. 
Measure of Achievement 4A: Relative investment will be defined as a ratio of overall grant spending on 
projects at pre‐identified priority times vs. projects at non‐priority times. 

 
Goal 5: Align grant guidelines with Strategic Tourism Plan implementation. 
Measure of Achievement 5A: The measure of achievement will be the number of funded projects that are 
directly related to a “critical action” of the strategic tourism plan.  
 
Projects that are related to overall strategic tourism plan implementation will continue to be considered, 
but emphasis should be placed on projects that relate directly to implementing “critical actions”. It would be 
great to see 50% or more of available funds go to implementing critical actions, however because we are 
dependent on grant applications to come forward, any implementation of critical actions through this 
program will be positive. 

 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Many of the “critical actions” from the 2012‐2020 draft strategic tourism plan will be forwarded directly by the 
tourism grant programs.  In fact, the competitive grant programs can be seen as a primary driver of strategic tourism 
plan implementation.  Examples of draft critical actions that would potentially fit include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Support the completion of priority multi‐use trails and connections between these and existing foot path 
systems, and support tourism‐enhancing features for priority trails (BDT, CWT/Urban Connections, S. Hill 
Rec Way, Finger Lakes Trail, Ithaca‐Dryden Rail Trail). 

 Inventory Sustainability Tourism attractors and attractions and develop platforms to connect visitors to 
those entities potentially including a tourist‐oriented sustainability trail. 

 Support the expansion and development of specialty festivals in the indoors in the winter. 

 Support existing collaborative agri‐ and culinary tourism marketing vehicles, such as the wine trails and the 
Finger Lakes Cheese Trail and develop new collaborative marketing platforms and programs for agricultural 
and culinary tourism (beer, CSAs, foodie tours, you‐pick/farm experience, Farmers Markets). 

 Develop walking, cycling and driving tours across multiple media (brochures, online maps, apps, audio tours, 
etc) of historic sites; historic architecture; local and academic black history sites (including the Underground 
Railroad/Freedom Trail in Ithaca); Native American archaeological sites; local industrial history sites 
(airplanes, guns, typewriters, etc.); homes of local authors (e.g. Nobokov), artists, playwrights; etc. 

 Inventory established but underutilized cultural assets such as the region’s cinema (historical and 
contemporary), specialty festivals, and music and develop targeted programs to expand and promote these. 

 Enhance visitor‐oriented capabilities of IthacaEvents.com. 
 Plan and implement a visitor communications strategy ‐ to include use of digital technology such as “apps” ‐ 

for local transportation options to encourage parking and then using the bus, cycling and walking.. 
 
 
VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
The primary achievements of the grant programs are the project outcomes themselves, which are detailed in grant 
applications and reports. 
 
In addition, the Senior Planner/ Tourism Coordinator has made improvements to the grant management process in 
2011 and early 2012, which translate to a more effective use of grant resources. These include: 

o Improved application forms. 
o Established use of scoring rubrics across all grant categories, that were first vetted by STPB and 

then applied by the review committees. 
o Moved application submission to electronic, saving hours and dollars on both the administrative 

end and applicant end in shuffling paper.  
o Developed a new system for review committees to view applications online. 
o Led well‐attended and positively reviewed grant applicant workshops in September 2011 and 

January 2012.   
o Established a vastly improved record‐keeping system for grants including a new grant application 

database that supports a streamlined grant management process and better availability of 
information about past grant applications and awards. 

o Clarified eligibility requirements and allowable expenses, and provided technical assistance to 
applicants in putting together their applications, leading to a noticeable improvement in the overall 
quality of applications. 

o Updated report forms and closely tracked reporting.   
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
 
The impact of receiving less than full funding would be a reduced capacity to fund worthy grant applications. The 
committee would need to decide between two approaches: to fund fewer applications, or to fund worthy 
applications at an amount less than requested. 
 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room‐tax funded programs? 
 
The County’s partnership with the DIA on the Festivals Program has taken large strides in the past year; this 
collaboration will continue to grow in 2012 and 2013. The watchwords for the program are “proactive technical 
assistance” and “enhancing the quality, tourism impact and sustainability of our events and festivals”. 
 
Grant guidelines state that the marketing approach should align with the CVB’s approach and the CVB has supported 
a number of applicants in developing their marketing plans. The grant guidelines also call for applicants to show how 
they will collaborate with other tourism partners, including the CVB and the Festivals Program, but also packaging 
with tourism businesses and venues. 
 



New Tourism Initiative Grants
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE 

(Modified) 

2011 Budget  2012 Budget 2013 Budget Notes

TCTP* $62,015 $66,445 96,500
SUBTOTAL $62,015 $66,445 $96,500

TOTAL REVENUES $62,015 $66,445 $96,500
TOTAL TCTP* $62,015 $66,445 $96,500
TCTP Share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

EXPENSES   
Grants $62,015 $66,445 $96,500
Administration $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL $62,015 $66,445 $96,500

TOTAL EXPENSES $62,015 $66,445 $96,500
TOTAL TCTP* $62,015 $66,445 $96,500
TCTP share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

REVENUES LESS EXPENSES $0 $0 $0

*TCTP‐Tompkins County Tourism Program

Actual 2011: 64,250 ($2,235 from TMA)

2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program:   Tourism Project Grants 

Applicant Organization: STPB Tourism Project Grant Committee 

Contact Person:   Jon Reis________    _______ 

Phone:          Email:   jon@jonreis.com 
Request:  $99,000       Product Development or Marketing?    Product Development 

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  $69,817        100% 

2011  $62,017  ‐$7,800  ‐11.2%  100% 

2012  $69,103  $7,086  11.4%  100% 

Request 2013  $99,000  $29,897  43.3%  100% 
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences.  
 
Tourism Project Grants support tourism‐generating single events or projects that have been in existence for more 
than three years in a row. 

 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
 
Spring 2012 applications increased 67% over Spring 2011, and requests totaled $117,765. In 2011 and in other prior 
years, there has also been a fall round of Project Grant funding in which additional applications and requests were 
considered. There will be no fall round in 2012 because all available funds were granted in the spring round. The 
challenge is to keep the on‐going tourism projects growing to attract more overnight visitors to Tompkins County. 
The Discovery Trail partners and other existing venues and attractions will continue to be strong attractors but will 
come back with funding requests on an on going basis. 

 
There will be an opportunity in the second half of 2012 and in 2013 to overhaul the Project Grant program to support 
alignment with strategic tourism plan implementation, streamline the application and review processes, and support 
more robust project evaluation. 

 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
 
Funds will be used to support Tourism Project Grant proposals. We anticipate further growth in total requests in 
2013 due to the work of the new Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator to proactively encourage and support 
applications. We also anticipate that the outreach that will accompany the release of the 2012‐2020 Strategic 
Tourism Plan will encourage even more applications to come forward in 2013. 

 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 

Goal 1: Increase overnight visitation and visitor spending associated with grant‐funded projects. 
Measure of Achievement 1A: Develop baseline figures for all funded projects and track numerical measures 
closely in 2012 and 2013, with a goal of every project showing increases of 10% over the previous year. 

 
Goal 2: Increase “packaging” of tourism projects with hotel properties, restaurants and other venues. 
Measure of Achievement 2A: Projects will be evaluated based on how well they deliver on packaging. With 
technical assistance, we can likely increase the number of entities with whom grantees for formal 
partnerships on packages by 25%. 

 
Goal 3: Promote financial sustainability of events and festivals that have received ongoing financial support 
by way of tourism project grants. 
Measure of Achievement 3A: Financial sustainability is incorporated into the grant guidelines and scoring 
rubric, and technical assistance on building in alternate revenues streams is provided through the Festivals 
Program.  
Measure of Achievement 3B: Requests from at least 2 longstanding projects are less in 2013 than they were 
in 2012. 

 
Goal 4: Increase the relative investment in projects with potential to expand activity during priority times 
such as winter and mid‐week. 
Measure of Achievement 4A: Relative investment will be defined as a ratio of overall grant spending on 
projects at pre‐identified priority times vs. projects at non‐priority times. 

 
Goal 5: Align grant guidelines with Strategic Tourism Plan implementation. 
Measure of Achievement 5A: The measure of achievement will be the number of funded projects that are 
directly related to a “critical action” of the strategic tourism plan.  
 
Projects that are related to overall strategic tourism plan implementation will continue to be considered, 
but emphasis should be placed on projects that relate directly to implementing “critical actions”. It would be 
great to see 50% or more of available funds go to implementing critical actions, however because we are 
dependent on grant applications to come forward, any implementation of critical actions through this 
program will be positive. 

 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Many of the “critical actions” from the 2012‐2020 draft strategic tourism plan will be forwarded directly by the 
tourism grant programs.  In fact, the competitive grant programs can be seen as a primary driver of strategic tourism 
plan implementation.  Examples of draft critical actions that would potentially fit include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Support the completion of priority multi‐use trails and connections between these and existing foot path 
systems, and support tourism‐enhancing features for priority trails (BDT, CWT/Urban Connections, S. Hill 
Rec Way, Finger Lakes Trail, Ithaca‐Dryden Rail Trail). 

 Inventory Sustainability Tourism attractors and attractions and develop platforms to connect visitors to 
those entities potentially including a tourist‐oriented sustainability trail. 

 Support the expansion and development of specialty festivals in the indoors in the winter. 

 Support existing collaborative agri‐ and culinary tourism marketing vehicles, such as the wine trails and the 
Finger Lakes Cheese Trail and develop new collaborative marketing platforms and programs for agricultural 
and culinary tourism (beer, CSAs, foodie tours, you‐pick/farm experience, Farmers Markets). 

 Develop walking, cycling and driving tours across multiple media (brochures, online maps, apps, audio tours, 
etc) of historic sites; historic architecture; local and academic black history sites (including the Underground 
Railroad/Freedom Trail in Ithaca); Native American archaeological sites; local industrial history sites 
(airplanes, guns, typewriters, etc.); homes of local authors (e.g. Nobokov), artists, playwrights; etc. 

 Inventory established but underutilized cultural assets such as the region’s cinema (historical and 
contemporary), specialty festivals, and music and develop targeted programs to expand and promote these. 

 Enhance visitor‐oriented capabilities of IthacaEvents.com. 
 Plan and implement a visitor communications strategy ‐ to include use of digital technology such as “apps” ‐ 

for local transportation options to encourage parking and then using the bus, cycling and walking.. 
 
VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
The primary achievements of the grant programs are the project outcomes themselves, which are detailed in grant 
applications and reports. 
 
In addition, the Senior Planner/ Tourism Coordinator has made improvements to the grant management process in 
2011 and early 2012, which translate to a more effective use of grant resources. These include: 

o Improved application forms. 
o Established use of scoring rubrics across all grant categories, that were first vetted by STPB and 

then applied by the review committees. 
o Moved application submission to electronic, saving hours and dollars on both the administrative 

end and applicant end in shuffling paper.  
o Developed a new system for review committees to view applications online. 
o Led well‐attended and positively reviewed grant applicant workshops in September 2011 and 

January 2012.   
o Established an improved record‐keeping system for grants including a new grant application 

database that supports a streamlined grant management process and better availability of 
information about past grant applications and awards. 

o Clarified eligibility requirements and allowable expenses, and provided technical assistance to 
applicants in putting together their applications, leading to a noticeable improvement in the overall 
quality of applications. 

o Updated report forms and closely tracked reporting.   
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
 
The impact of receiving less than full funding would be a reduced capacity to fund worthy grant applications. The 
committee would need to decide between two approaches: to fund fewer applications, or to fund worthy 
applications at an amount less than requested. 

 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room‐tax funded programs? 
 
The County’s partnership with the DIA on the Festivals Program has taken large strides in the past year; this 
collaboration will continue to grow in 2012 and 2013. The watchwords for the program are “proactive technical 
assistance” and “enhancing the quality, tourism impact and sustainability of our events and festivals”. 
 
Grant guidelines state that the marketing approach should align with the CVB’s approach and the CVB has supported 
a number of applicants in developing their marketing plans. The grant guidelines also call for applicants to show how 
they will collaborate with other tourism partners, including the CVB and the Festivals Program, but also packaging 
with tourism businesses and venues. 
 



Tourism Project Grants
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE 

(Modified) 

2011 Budget  2012 Budget

2013 Budget 

Request  Notes

TCTP* $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
SUBTOTAL $62,017 $69,103 $99,000

TOTAL REVENUES $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
TOTAL TCTP* $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
TCTP Share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

EXPENSES   
Grants $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
Administration $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL $62,017 $69,103 $99,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
TOTAL TCTP* $62,017 $69,103 $99,000
TCTP share 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

REVENUES LESS EXPENSES $0 $0 $0

*TCTP‐Tompkins County Tourism Program

Actual 2011 Expend: $85,834 (Difference from Dragonboat - $16,517, and three 2010 expenses paid out of 2011 ($7,300)

2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1



 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 

I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 

Program: Workforce Development Program 

Applicant Organization: Tompkins County Workforce Investment Board 

Contact Person: Julia Mattick, Executive Director___________   

Phone:  607‐274‐7526       Email: jmattick@tompkins‐co.org 

2013 Request:  $30,000     Product Development or Marketing?    Marketing     

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  30,000           

2011  30,000           

2012  30,000           

Request 2013  30,000         61%  

* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 

II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Now entering our fourth year, our proposal (and anticipated results) have continued to evolve. In 2013, we 
propose to: 1). Align training with the goals and strategies of the Strategic Tourism Plan. 2). Continue the 
development of employee skills, knowledge and competencies. 3). Increase number of employee industry 
recognized certifications. 4). Enable individuals to move and advance through career pathways. 5). 
Further develop training resources and opportunities. The workshops and training sessions are geared for 
entry-level employees, frontline, supervisors and managers. 
 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Challenges: Employee turnover, release (paid or unpaid) time limitations, scheduling issues and 
establishing tangible and perceived results (performance outcomes) must be considered when creating a 
training program/schedule and development of resources. Marketing (branding of the program and various 
partners) and the establishment of ongoing relationships and connections in this ever-changing industry is 
challenging. A few local large businesses that have corporate training already in existence have not 
actively participated. Their employees may not fully understand the ambassador role and may not have 
the opportunity to become familiar with Tompkins County attractions, events and festivals. 
 
Opportunities: Over time, employers have recognized and tapped into the value added activities that the 
Tompkins Workforce New York partnership can provide; career exploration and pathways, employee 
recruitment, no cost job postings, access to Metrix e-learning, nationally recognized Customer Service and 
Worker Readiness training and credentialing, ServSafe food and alcohol credentialing, access to 
Workforce Investment Act funding, internship and apprenticeship placements, collaboration on State and 
Federal grants, labor law and human resource consultation, etc.  We also have the opportunity to 
encourage and promote the Hotel and Restaurant Management, International Hospitality and Wine 
Marketing Certificate programs at TC3. 
 

2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

 
 
 
 
IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
 
88% of the funds (personnel wage, personnel fringe, training providers) will be utilized to deliver customer 
service, supervisory, ServSafe, human resources training sessions, through program staff as well as 
training providers.  
 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
 
Goal 1: To build knowledge about the hospitality industry and improve basic ambassador skills deemed 
necessary to be successful in the industry.  
 
Measurable Objective #1: Increase the number of individuals who participate in customer service training 
from 40 to 48; an increase of 20%. (This includes Hospitality Star and How to Handle Difficult Customers). 
 
Measurable Objective #2: Increase the number of employees with industry-recognized certifications from 
10 to 15; an increase of 50%. 
 
Goal 2:  To increase knowledge and build skills of new or recently promoted supervisors in 
communication, supervision, customer service, motivation, new employee orientation, teamwork, 
delegation and current HR best practices. 
 
Measurable Objective #1: Maintain supervisory training series for new or recently promoted supervisors. 
 
Measurable Objective #2: Increase the number of managers and supervisors receiving Metrix online 
learning accounts from 16 to 22. An increase of 40%. 
 
VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Increased the average number of attendees at Hospitality Star from 12 to 20 in 2011. To date registration 
for 2012 Hospitality Star is 23.  
 
Created an organized approach to marketing training sessions to businesses through partnering with the 
Convention and Visitors Bureau, Downtown Ithaca Alliance and Tompkins Cortland Community College 
(Listservs, websites, mailings, personal visits). 
 
Conducted ServSafe Food Safety and ServSafe Alcohol Training in 2011 and 2012. This enabled 20 
people to receive an industry recognized credential. 
 
Created Supervisory Training Series with an average of 9 Supervisors/Managers attending each session. 
 
Created Hospitality Star pin and logo. Awarded first Hospitality Star attendees with pins in 2011 session.  
 
Thus far in 2012 we have offered three of the five industry defined training sessions planned. 
     Incorporating Social Media, Dealing with Difficult Customers, Getting Greener – Sustainable Tourism 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
 
If we received less funding than requested it would necessitate our decreasing the customer service 
training options offered. Providing ongoing training in the hospitality and tourism industry is an important 
component of enhancing visitor’s experiences.  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

 
 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
 
This program provides a unique partner collaboration of area provider’s expertise and coordination. This 
program depends on active coordination with the Workforce Investment Board, Tompkins Workforce New 
York, Chamber of Commerce, Convention and Visitors Bureau, Ithaca Downtown Alliance, Tompkins 
Cortland Community College, Cornell Cooperative Extension, youth providers and local high schools. 
 
 
 



Tompkins Workforce Development
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program

REVENUE 

(Modified) 

2011 Budget  2012 Budget 2013 Budget Notes

List major categories of revenues TCTP* 30000 30000 30000
Add or delete lines/rows as needed Workforce Investment Act $18,300 19000 19000
Separate by project if more than one project Other (name)
If applicable, include value of in‐kind support as 

"other".
SUBTOTAL $48,300 $49,000 $49,000

TOTAL REVENUES $48,300 $49,000 $49,000

TOTAL TCTP* $30,000 $30,000 $30,000

TCTP Share 62.1% 61.2% 61.2%

EXPENSES   
List major categories of expenses Grants

Add or delete lines/rows as needed Personnel Wages $6,753 $6,700 $6,700
Separate by project if more than one project Personnel Fringe $3,471 $3,638 $3,980

Materials $143 $150 $125

Services $66 $70 $70

Occupancy and Utilities $222 $225 $225

Travel $17 $20 $0

Phone $102 $105 $105

Membership $5 $10 $10

Training Providers $16,222 $16,082 $15,785

Administration $3,000 $3,000 $3,000

Other (name)

SUBTOTAL $30,000 $30,000 $30,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $48,300 $49,000 $49,000

TOTAL TCTP* 30,000 30,000 30,000
TCTP share 62.1% 61.2% 61.2%

REVENUES LESS EXPENSES $0 $0 $0

*TCTP‐Tompkins County Tourism Program

2013 Budget Worksheet - Tompkins County Tourism Program.xls Page 1



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program:   Community Celebrations Grants       

Applicant Organization:   Community Celebrations Committee  

Contact Person:     Carol Kammen    

Phone:    273‐5298    Email:   ckk6@cornell.edu   

2013 Request:  $40,000     Product Development or Marketing?  Product      

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  $26,600        100% 

2011  $26,600  $0  0.0%  100% 

2012  $26,600  $0  0.0%  100% 

Request 2013  $40,000  $13,400  50.4%  100% 
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences. 
 
The Celebrations Awards go to local home-town events, but the program has been very attractive 
to a number of new initiatives and we have been the place that a many very successful programs 
have gotten their start. The Lansing Festival of the Arts is one, the Dragon Boat Race is another. 
 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
 
The Celebrations grants have been very effective in promoting local events, in increasing the 
quality of events proposed, and have given people a start. The challenge is that the Celebrations 
grant applications generally request more than double the amount that the committee, which 
considers each request very carefully, has to allocate. This program is good for the community 
and it is wonderful publicity for STPB 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
 
We will allocate more to grant recipients that their programs may reflect the history and diversity 
of the community. We also see some geographical distribution among the towns of the county 
and the City of Ithaca. 
 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
Each grant recipient is required to file an event report. These are lodged with the Planning 
Department. 
 
VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
We have promoted a great many excellent events and have fostered some new celebrations that 
enrich the community. 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
 
The impact of the Celebrations grants, even though restricted to $2,000 is great. Funds provide 
for local events and also for the creation of new ones that have become significant within the 
county and attractive to people beyond the county limits. 
 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room‐tax funded programs? 
 
Celebration Grants generally go to groups that collaborate with historical societies, town 
governments, and groups promoting specifically targeted audiences. There is a great deal of cross 
over and we find that people are very enthusiastic about attending these celebrations, and that 
the celebrations have been enriched by the Celebrations guidelines. 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I.  BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program: County Historian             

Applicant Organization:   County Historian     

Contact Person: Carol Kammen    _______________ 

Phone:  273‐5298       Email: ckk6@cornell.edu   

2013 Request:  $6,000   Product Development or Marketing?  Product Development 

Year 
Tourism Program 
Allocation** 

$ Change  % Change 
% of Program 

Budget* 

2010  5,000         100% 

2011  5,000    $0   0%   100% 

2012  5,000    $0  0%   100% 

Request 2013  6,000    $1,000  20%   100% 
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
The position of County Historian (CH) is mandated by state law. As CH I have attempted to bring 
the history of the county alive for all residents through monthly meetings with the town, village 
and city historians (MHTC), in newspaper articles, by answering questions from the public and the 
Representatives, and by co‐chairing the TC Civil War Sesquicentennial Commemoration 
Commission with Michael Lane. I also speak around the county and consult with history groups, 
with the Women’s Fund of the Community Foundation and I chair the Celebrations Awards 
Committee for the STPB. 
 
III.  CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
The challenge is always how to link our historical and cultural past with present day residents to 
give everyone a sense of belonging to this place and at this time. I try to meet this need in a 
variety of ways, mostly by involving people in thinking about their own role in history. 
Guarding records and seeing that they are well cared for is also important especially now in this 
digital age; I consulted with the Assistant County Clerk on records destined for storage and those 
records that should be kept locally. I work with the Archivist at The History Center and deliver the 
HC materials that should be preserved. 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV.  BUDGET NARRATIVE 
The County Historian receives an annual stipend. Whenever there has been a specific need, such 
as publication of a book or pamphlets about the county, I have sought the money from local 
foundations. 
 
In addition, on behalf of the Civil War Nurses Scholarship Fund at TC3, I have raised money from 
the community (approximately $82,000 so far).  
 
Because I have a great deal of material at home, I do not need an official office except for 
meeting people, but I believe that I should have slated times when the public might consult with 
the county historian: collaboration with the Public Library is a possible way of solving this. 
 
 
V.  PROGRAM GOALS 
This year, under the guidance of the CH, the Municipal Historians of Tompkins County are 
preparing an annotated and illustrated census of all the religious structures in the county, 
including some of those no longer standing. This is a large project that includes history and 
architecture and community organizations that promote stability and responsibility in the 
community. We hope to have this book ready late in 2012, possibly early in 2013; the funding is 
being sought by grants. To measure success I would look at how all the members cooperated and 
met expectations for copy and images and the reception of the book locally. If I needed to 
measure this in terms of numbers I suppose I could set a target number of books sold. I believe 
the print run will be something between 300 to 600 copies. 
 
Another goal is fostering cooperation among the MHTC; I suppose a way of measuring this would 
be to look at attendance at monthly meetings. 
 
A third goal is to be sure to identify any materials that need to be preserved for the future. It 
would be hard to set a measurable goal but I would suggest that if one thing/document is saved 
that is a plus. Two would be better. 
 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 
I have been working on the content for a pamphlet to be issued by the CVB on the Underground 
RR connections with Tompkins County; this has been stalled because of my husband’s illness but I 
will get to it this summer.  
 
Another goal would be to better coordinate with the historical societies, preservation groups, and 
libraries in the county to promote local history and culture. 
 
 
 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

VI.   ACHIEVEMENTS 

 The Civil War Nurses Scholarship at TC3 (recipients to be announced sometime this 
spring). A number of talks about the women from Tompkins County who served as nurses 
in the Civil War, plus several newspaper articles about them. An article in Archives, the 
publication of the New York State Archives called “No Place for Women,” (Spring 2012). 

 Completion of the mss. of the second edition of The Encyclopedia of Local History to be 
published by Rowman and Littlefield. 

 Consulting with the Chemung County Historical Society. 

 Answering 4 to 10 inquiries a week of a historical nature. 

 Chairing monthly meetings of the MHTC and of the TC Civil War Commemoration 
Commission. 

 26 newspaper articles in The Ithaca Journal and 4 editorials for History News, the journal 
of the American Association for State and Local History. 

 
 
VII.   IMPACT OF FUNDING 
The funding for the CH has little to do with the activities of the current CH. The stipend is greatly 
appreciated but it does not determine what is undertaken. 
 
 
VIII.   COLLABORATION 
I believe that collaboration with any and all groups in the county is exceedingly important, that 
collaboration with groups outside the county is crucial, and that what is achieved by the 
Celebrations Grant Committee is very important to the life and culture of county residents: this is 
a very collaborative effort. 
 
  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I. BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program: Discovery Trail 

Applicant Organization: Discovery Trail 

Contact Person: Nancy Grossman 

Phone:  607.351.1505  Email:  ngrossman@discoverytrail.com 

2013 Request:  $56,270.00   Product Development or Marketing?  Marketing 

Year 
Tourism 
Program 

Allocation** 

$ 
Change 

% 
Change 

% of Program Budget* 

2010 35,734.00  -1,881.00 -5% 23% overall and  71% marketing and admin  

2011 35,734.00   0   0 Same as 2010  

2012 36,270.00   536.00  1.5% 22% overall and  70% marketing and admin   

Request 
2013 

56,270.00  20,000.00  55%  
30% overall and  79% marketing and admin 

Note: based on no change in Admin and School Program budgets 
which have not been determined at this time.    

* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Describe the program in two or three sentences.  
 

The Discovery Trail is a collaborative of eight Tompkins County attractions, including seven museums and the TC 
Public Library. The Discovery Trail pools its resources, including annual member contributions of $14,900 in 2012, to 
co-promote the member organizations, and thereby extends its marketing reach beyond what each organization 
could do individually.  
 
III. CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Very briefly state overarching challenges and opportunities related to your program (current or 
anticipated in 2013) and describe you how propose to address them. 
 

Challenges: The current number of hours available to focus on marketing initiatives needs to be increased. Because 
of these time constraints there are missed marketing opportunities.  
 
Opportunities: The Discovery Trail is an incredible product. We have eight international quality educational 
institutions that provide rich and engaging experiences to all ages every season of the year. This wide range of appeal 
offers us endless marketing opportunities to engage visitors.  



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

IV. BUDGET NARRATIVE 
Describe how you propose to use the requested funds. You may also use this section to expand 
on your answers to questions II and III. 
 
The Discovery Trail’s annual budget is set up into program budgets. We have a separate budget for administration 
and marketing and a separate program budget for our two school programs in Ithaca and Trumansburg. The 
expansion of Kids Discover the Trail, noted later in this document, will be funded in a separate budget from the 
Discovery Trail’s marketing efforts. 
 
During 2012 the Discovery Trail directors are reviewing the payment structure of our member dues. The amount 
included in the budget for 2013 is a carryover from 2012. 
 
Our goal for 2013 is to hire a part-time person who will be dedicated to marketing 20 hours per week in addition to 
the current marketing time worked by the DT Coordinator. We currently do not have enough time to accomplish our 
marketing objectives.  
 
We have outlined our marketing objectives in the attached marketing plan and here are some highlights: 
 

o “Smart Fun” campaign, an educational approach geared towards grandparents and retired travelers. 
o Quarterly Key Weekends 
o E-news work with CVB to marketing key weekends. DT sites market weekends in their enews and other 

social media platforms.  
o Explore increased media opportunities including Social media and enhancement of activities and Improved 

ability to track our marketing efforts and results  
o Exhibition planning / coordination of co-marketing with DT sites 
o Part-time hire to attend CVB, Chamber and other local functions and partner with CVB as appropriate 
o 2013 Visitor Survey 
o Expansion of Kids Discover the Trail! school program for elementary students to all Tompkins County 

districts. 
o Discovery Trail site and social media and website to act as a clearinghouse for information generated by 

each site.  

 
V. PROGRAM GOALS 
List and describe program goals for 2013, using the sample format. For each goal listed, describe 
how you will measure achievement of that goal (you may list more than one measure of 
achievement for each goal). This will require you to consider appropriate numerical measures and 
baselines.  
 
Also, which goals of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan does this program respond to, 
and how do your proposed program goals align with goals stated in the strategic tourism plan? 
 
In 2012 we have revisited our marketing plan. The updated document is attached for your review.  
 
The Discovery Trail plans to continue with our successful initiatives and make adjustments in 2013 to include more 
social media and the expansion of our marketing efforts using focused key weekends and a smart fun educational 
experience.  Our marketing initiatives correspond with the growing use of the internet for travel planning and 
majority of Tompkins County tourists in the age range of 45-64 years as outlined in the Chmura Report.  
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Our planned expansion of the Kids Discover the Trail! program from Ithaca and Trumansburg districts to include the 
remaining four districts in Tompkins County mirrors STPB Tourism Aim of improving the quality of life for local 
residents. 
 
The Heritage and Educational Tourism goals outlined in the STPB’s strategic plan dovetail with the Discovery Trail’s 
strategic initiatives specifically the heritage key weekend.  
 
Strategic Initiative: Promotion to Out-of-Area Visitors 
 
Goal 1: Hire a dedicated part-time marketing person 
Measure of Achievement: Increase the number of marketing hours from 5 to 25 hours per week. 
Narrative description of this goal and related measures of achievement:   

We plan to hire a new staff member for 20 hours a week dedicated to marketing in addition to the current 
coordinator marketing hours. This new position will be completely focused on our marketing plans as outlined in this 
document and the attached marketing plan.  

Accomplishment of this goal will be reached with a new hire and meeting our marketing objectives. 
 
Goal 2: Increase attendance at Discovery Trail sites by 25% between 2012- 2020 
Measure of Achievement : Using 2011 as our baseline for the following calculations and a per visitor spend of $185 
(from Chmura Report) and including the additional hours from a dedicated part-time marketing person we expect to  
see an increase of 6% in year over year visitation to the out of county visitor number of 144,396 and annual spend of 
$26,713,260. 
Narrative description of this goal and related measures of achievement:  
Here are the numbers broken out to 2020: 
2013: 153,059 with an annual spend of $28,315,915.00 
2014: 162,242 with an annual spend of $30,014,770.00 
2015: 171,976 with an annual spend of $31,815,560.00 
2016: 182,294 with an annual spend of $33,724,390.00 
2017: 193,231 with an annual spend of $35,747,735.00 
2018: 204,824 with an annual spend of $37,892,440.00 
2019: 217,113 with an annual spend of $40,165,905.00 
2020: 230,139 with an annual spend of $42,575,715.00 
 
With the additional marketing person we could realize an increase of 85,743 visitors between 2011 and 2020 and 
increase in annual spend of $15,862,455. 
 
Goal 3: Increase Tompkins County visitation with the addition of new Discovery Trail programs:  

A. “Smart Fun” campaign, an educational approach geared towards grandparents and retired travelers. 
B. Consistent tag-line that markets educational and learning opportunities at DT sites using web and print 

advertising out-of-area. 
C. Quarterly Key Weekends - establish quarterly “key weekend” marketing packages with related programming 

/ exhibitions at all or most participating sites 
D. E-news work with CVB to marketing key weekends. DT sites market weekends in their e-news and other 

social media platforms 
Measure of Achievement:  To increase each site’s gateway visit metric by 20% using past and future Discovery Trail 
visitor survey data. To create and put into circulation a Discovery Trail ticket and 30% open rate for e-news. 
Narrative description of this goal and related measures of achievement:  

With the addition of a new staff member the Smart Fun and Quarterly key weekends will be researched and 
put into action during 2013 allowing the Discovery Trail marketing to reach new and more focused travelers.  

With the data from our future visitor surveys we will have the ability to track the number of visitors at one 
DT site also visiting one or more additional DT sites as well as tracking the use of the Discovery Trail ticket which will 
offer admission and gift shop discounts. 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Goal 4: Develop increased media opportunities including social media and Improved ability to track our marketing 
efforts and results  
Measure of Achievement: monthly and regional statistics from advertising campaigns. 
Narrative description of this goal and related measures of achievement:   

With the addition of a new staff member we will have the ability to track the success of print and web 
advertising by implementing the use of Unique URL and QR codes in our advertising and tracking results using Google 
analytics to determine origination of DT visitors and clicks. 

This goal will be accomplished when we have data to show the results of advertising in certain publications 
and locations. 
 
Strategic Initiative 2: Promotion to local visitors 
 
Goal: Expansion of Kids Discover the Trail! school program for elementary students to all Tompkins County districts 
and event marketing to all students in Tompkins-Seneca-Tioga BOCES. 
Measure of Achievement: Increase student participation from Ithaca and Trumansburg Central School Districts to 
include elementary students in Dryden, Groton, Lansing and Newfield. 
Narrative description of this goal and related measures of achievement:   

Our expansion plans propose the addition of two districts during the 2013-2014 school year.  
This expansion will offer the Discovery Trail’s curriculum based field trip to all students in Tompkins County and 
thereby increase the educational opportunities across all economic levels.  All elementary students will also receive a 
monthly event/exhibit flier.  

These initiatives help to build word-of-mouth knowledge of the Discovery Trail which in turn increases 
visitation and also educationally enriches the lives of Tompkins County residents. 

Funding for the expansion of Kids Discover the Trail will be a separate program budget from the Discovery 
Trail’s marketing efforts. 
 
VI.  ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 
2011 achievements include:  

o Enhanced website live May 2011 
o Summer 2011 visitor survey 
o Redesign, printing and distribution of brochure 
o Increase in web advertising and on-line event listings (Life in Fingerlakes and visitithaca.com). Google 

analytics data shows an increase in unique views from second quarter 2010 to 2011 of 43 to 106% in New 
York, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Massachusetts. 

o The Getaway Guy filming of Cayuga Nature Center and Johnson Museum of Art airing in Rochester, Buffalo, 
Syracuse and Albany.  

 
2011 Program Goals:  
For 2011 the Discovery Trail will continue to implement the goals of our current Marketing Plan and 
� Increase total attendance at Discovery Trail sites by 3-5%, following the trend of the past five years.  
Result: 2010 to 2011 visitation was flat overall due to TC Public Library closing on Sundays from lack of funding. 
However the Museum only total increased 3%. 
� Increase out-of-county name recognition of Discovery Trail by 5%, from 26.6% in 2008 to 28% in 2011. 
Result: 2011 visitor survey reports 32% of out-of-county visitors were familiar with the Discovery Trail 
� Increase in-county name recognition of Discovery Trail by 5% from 58.8% in 2008 to 62% in 2011. 
Result: 2011 visitor survey reports 61% of in-county visitors were familiar with the Discovery Trail. 
 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

2012 to date achievements include:  
o Google adwords campaign 
o Increase in web advertising placements including: AAA destination spotlight, Fingerlakes Tourism Alliance 

and Edible Fingerlakes.   
o May 7 press release from I Love NY highlighted suggested museums and includes Johnson Museum of Art 

and Sciencenter for NYS Museum Week.  
o Updating of 2008 marketing plan. 

 
2012 Program Goals:  
� Increase total attendance at Discovery Trail sites by 3-5%, following the trend of the past five years.  
Result: first quarter attendance for museums shows a 3% increase over 2011. 
 
VII.  IMPACT OF FUNDING 
What would be the specific impact of receiving less funding than you are requesting? For 
example, what are the things that you would like to be able to do that you would not be able to 
do? What would be removed or reduced from your plans if you had to make do with less than 
requested? 
 
As demonstrated in our proposal the additional requested funds will allow the Discovery Trail to grow our visitation 
resulting in an increase in funding for Tompkins County.  
 
If we receive a continuation of our current funding level we feel this will dismantle our current and planned 
promotional ability.  
 
Without a new hire our calculations show a year over year growth of 3% vs. 6% which would results in the reduction 
of annual visitors and their annual spend from 2012: 144,396 with an annual spend of $26,713,260.00 to 2020: 
182,911 with an annual spend of $33,838,535.00 which is a potential increase of visitation of 38,515 vs. 85,743 and 
$7,125,275 vs $15,862,455 annual spend.   
 
VIII.  COLLABORATION 
What steps have you taken and do you propose to take to further collaboration and information 
and resource sharing between your program(s) and other room-tax funded programs? 
 
The Discovery Trail maintains a strong working relationship with the Ithaca CVB through collaboration on marketing 
campaigns and participation in CVB initiatives such as the VIsitithaca.com feature listings, seasonal e-new blasts, bus 
tour offerings, Star Hospitality offerings, Winter Recess and behind the scene tours. 
 
With the proposed increase in funding the DT plans to engage the CVB with our quarterly key weekends and smart 
fun campaigns. 
 
We plan to increase collaboration with hotel properties and Discovery Trail sites through co-marketing of exhibits, 
Discovery Trail ticket and promotion of key weekends and smart fun campaigns.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Program Name 
2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program 

      

REVENUE    

 (Modified) 
2011 

Budget  
 2012 

Budget  
 2013 

Budget  Notes 
 List major categories of revenues TCTP* $35,734.00 $36,270.00 $56,270.00 

  Add or delete lines/rows as needed DT Member Dues $14,920.00 $14,920.00 $14,920.00 
  Separate by project if more than one project           

 If applicable, include value of in-kind support 
as "other". SUBTOTAL $50,654 $51,190 $71,190 

  
    

  
  

 
TOTAL REVENUES $50,654.00 $51,190.00 $71,190.00 

  
 

TOTAL TCTP* $35,734.00 $36,270.00 $56,270.00 
  

 
TCTP Share 70.5% 70.9% 79.0% 

  EXPENSES              
 

List major categories of expenses 
Web & Printing Out of 
Area 

$11,905.00 $14,460.00 $14,460.00 

  Add or delete lines/rows as needed Visitor Survey $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 
  Separate by project if more than one project Brochure Reprint/design $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 
  

 
Brochure Distribution $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 

  
 

Web Design/Hosting $1,000.00 $400.00 $1,500.00 
  

 
Local advertising & fliers $2,945.00 $2,920.00 $2,920.00 

  
 

Maps and/or Stickers $0.00 $540.00 $1,000.00 
2012 - only maps, 2013 - maps & 
stickers 

 
Professional Fees $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 annual audit 

 
 

Coordinator-admin $10,175.00 $10,200.00 $10,200.00 
  

 
Coordinator-marketing $8,829.00 $8,870.00 $8,790.00 

 
 

Proposed PT marketing $0.00 $0.00 $18,520.00 
 

 
SUBTOTAL $50,654.00 $51,190.00 $71,190.00 

  

    
  

 
 

TOTAL EXPENSES $50,654.00 $51,190.00 $71,190.00 
 

 
TOTAL TCTP* $35,734.00 $36,270.00 $56,270.00 

 
 

TCTP share 70.5% 70.9% 79.0% 
 

    
  

  
 

REVENUES LESS 
EXPENSES 

$0 $0 $0 

  
  

     
       
 

*TCTP-Tompkins County Tourism Program 
    

 
      

  
     

 
       



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

COVER PAGE 
2013 Budget Request Form 
Tompkins County Tourism Program 
 
I. BASIC INFORMATION 
 
Program: Tompkins Tourism Partner Award 

Applicant Organization: STPB 

Contact Person: Richard Adie 

Phone:  607-254-2545  Email: ra99@cornell.edu 

2013 Request:  $     Product Development or Marketing?  Marketing 

Year 
Tourism Program 

Allocation** 
$ Change % Change 

% of Program 
Budget* 

2010 $1000       

2011 $1000   0  0  100% 

2012 0        

Request 2013  $5000 $5000    100%  
* Enter the % of the total program budget that would come from the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 
** Enter modified budget amounts where applicable. 
 
II. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
Tourism Partner awards are presented twice a year to individuals outside the tourism industry 
who devote time and effort to bring groups to Tompkins County that result in more than 200 
room nights at Tompkins County lodging facilities. Recipients will be commemorated with 
inscribed pavers on the Cayuga Waterfront Trail. 
 
 
III. CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES  
Current challenges include having no money in the 2012 budget for awards. This is due to the 
money not being encumbered from 2010 and 2011. Ongoing the challenge is to gain nominees 
from the hotel community. We will continue to work with the CVB and the hotel community to 
encourage nominations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

 
 
 
IV. BUDGET NARRATIVE 
The requested budget for 2013 will be to fund recognition pavers to be installed on the 
Waterfront Trail. Pavers that need to be purchased and installed: 

 Alpha Phi Alpha 100th Anniversary – presented in 2006 

 Turkey Shoot Lacrosse Tournament- presented in 2012 

 Ithaca College National Conference on Undergraduate Research – presented in 2012 
In addition there are still three nominations approved by the STPB that need to be presented at 
the Legislature: 

 Double Reed Society – approved by STPB in 2007 

 Dragon Boat Festival- approved by STPB in 2008 

 Highway Superintendents – approved by STPB in 2008 
We also should plan on four nominations in 2013. 
 
For each Tourism Partner Award a paver in the Waterfront Trail must be purchased.  
 
 

V. PROGRAM GOALS 
Goal 1: Continue to nominate Tompkins Tourism Partners to recognize individuals who have 
made an impact on tourism economy. This recognition not only serves as genuine thank you by 
the County, but also helps inspire others to bring groups to Tompkins County. 
 
Measure of Achievement 1A: Purchase and install the Waterfront pavers for 2012 (Turkey Shoot 
Lacrosse and NCUR) 
Measure of Achievement for 1B: Recognize at the legislature the Tompkins Tourism Partner 
awards that are back logged (Double Reed, Dragon Boat and Highway Superintendents) 
Measure of Achievement for 1C: Purchase and install the Waterfront pavers that are back logged.  
Measure of Achievement for 1D: Nomination for up to four groups for 2013 for the Tompkins 
Tourism Partner Awards. Purchase and install the 2013 pavers on the Waterfront Trail. 
Measure of Achievement for 1E: Create a public relations event in 2013 for the installation of the 
pavers on the Waterfront Trail.  
 
This goal aligns with the Strategic Plan in the Focus Area of: The Tourism Foundation- enable the 
success of all tourism types. In particular it focuses on the Group Market.  
 
 
 
VI.  ACHIEVEMENTS 
Please describe your most significant program achievements during 2011 and the first quarter 
(January through March) of 2012. If possible, please use this as an opportunity to restate your 
program goals for the 2011 and 2012 budget years and describe progress towards these goals. 
 



2013 Budget Request – Tompkins County Tourism Program 
Email to tknipe@tompkins-co.org by 5/24, 11am 

 

Achievement in 2011 was the revitalization of the Tompkins Tourism Partner Awards. Two groups 
were recognized for their impact on the tourism economy at the Tompkins County Legislature in 
February of 2012. This provided recognition to the groups and also garnered publicity in the local 
community.  
 
 
VII.  IMPACT OF FUNDING 
If less funding is received we will have to further delay distributing awards that have already been 
approved by the STPB, one which was approved in 2007.  If that does happen we should continue 
to encourage nominations in order to not lose more momentum.  
 
 
VIII.  COLLABORATION 
Close collaboration is necessary with the Tompkins County Convention and Visitors Bureau. The 
Director of Sales and Director of the Bureau are most aware of groups that deserve recognition 
with the Tourism Partner Award. They also meet with the hotel community on a monthly basis, 
so are in a position to encourage nominations.  
 
 

Tourism Partner Award 
    2013 Budget Request - Tompkins County Tourism Program 

  
     

REVENUE    

 (Modified) 
2011 Budget  

 2012 
Budget  

 2013 
Budget  

 
TCTP* 1000 

 
5000 

 
SUBTOTAL $1,000 $0 $5,000 

    
  

 
TOTAL TCTP* 

  
$5,000 

 
TCTP Share 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 

EXPENSES            

Waterfront Pavers for four prospective Tourism 
Partners 2013 

Pavers 2013 
  

$2,000 

Waterfront Pavers for three awardees approved 
by STPB but not yet recognized 

Pavers for past nominees 
  

$1,500 

Waterfront Pavers for Recipients to date ( APA, 
NCUR and Turkey Shoot) 

Pavers for three recipients to date 2006-2012 $1,500 

 
SUBTOTAL $0 $0 $5,000 

    
  

 
TOTAL EXPENSES     $5,000 

 
TOTAL TCTP*     5000 

 
TCTP share #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 100.0% 

    
  

 
REVENUES LESS EXPENSES #REF! #REF! $0 

  
   

     
 

*TCTP-Tompkins County Tourism Program 

   


	6_20_2012_STPB_agenda
	05_16_2012_STPB_minutes
	2013 budget recommendations - stpb budget committee
	2005-2012
	ALL - 2013 Tourism Program Budget Requests
	2013 Budget Request Form - CVB
	2013 Budget Request Form - BEAUTIFICATION
	2013 Budget Request Form - TCG
	2013 Budget Request Form-ACOD
	2013 Budget Request Form-CAP_GOS
	2013 Budget Request Form - TICKET CENTER
	2013 Budget Request Form - MARKET THE ARTS
	2013 Budget Request Form - FESTIVALS
	2013 Budget Request Form.pdf
	STPB Festivals Program Report

	2013 Budget Request Form-TMA
	2013 Budget Request Form-NTI
	2013 Budget Request Form-TPG
	2013 Budget Request Form - WORKFORCE
	2013 Budget Request Form-STPB FINAL_1.pdf
	2013 Budget Request Form
	Tompkins County Tourism Program
	I. BASIC INFORMATION
	II. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION
	III. CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES
	Opportunities: Over time, employers have recognized and tapp
	IV. BUDGET NARRATIVE
	V. PROGRAM GOALS
	VI.  ACHIEVEMENTS
	VII.  IMPACT OF FUNDING
	VIII.  COLLABORATION




	2013 Budget Request Form - CELEBRATIONS
	2013 Budget Request Form-HISTORIAN
	2013 Budget Request Form - DISCOVERY TRAIL
	2013 Budget Request Form - RECOGNITION
	2013 Budget Request Form-STRATEGIC STAFFING & PLANNING




